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VISION

First Capital Securities Corporation Limited aspires to become a
well-diversified and successful conglomerate and develop its
Image as a premier telecom and financial services group.

MISSION

At First Capital Securities Corporation Limited we are committed
to provide high quality services in a positive environment that
encourages innovation, creativity and teamwork, promotes
ethical and efficient behavior and enables shareholders to
maximize the returns on their investments.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is herebhy given that 16" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of First Capital Securities Corporation
Limited (“the Company™ or “FCSC™) will be held on 31 October 2009 at 02:30 p.m. at the Registered Oflice ol the
Company, 103-C 11, Gulberg-111, l.ahore to transact the following business:

Ordinary busiess

. Torconfirm the minutes of last Extracrdinary General Meeting held on 26 September 2009:

i

* Toapprove as recommended by the Board of Directors, issue of bonus shares in the proportion of (13} bonus
shares for every one hundred (100) shares held i.e. 15%, This 15 in addition to 10% interim bonus shares
declared and 1ssued on (4 June 2009 by the Company, thus making a total bonus issue of 25% fully paid
ordinary shares during the year. which shali also be considered as a final bonus issue;

I__‘_J

lo recelve, consider and adept the financial statements of the Company ftor the yvear ended 30 June 2009
together with the Direclors' and Auditors' reports thereon; and

4, lo appoint the Auditors of the Company for the yearending 30 June 2010 and to fix their remunceration.

Special Business

3. 1o consider and if deemed fit, pass the following *Special Resolutions®” with or without modifications
for theinvestments in the associated companies:

“RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive ofthe Company be and is hereby authorized to make investment
by way of providing Guarantee and/or Security o financial institution(s) by creating mortgage/chargc on the
Company's present/future immoveable/moveable properties. for securing the obligations of First Capital
Equities Limited (“FCEL"). subsidiary of the Company, under regulations of Stock Exchange(s) up to the
extentot Rs. [50.00 Million (Rupees One hundred fifty million only} for a period of three years, from time to
time. In case guarantee is called upon by the financial institution(s) and the Company is required 1o make
payment 1o any lmancial institution(s). the amount paid to financial institution(s) shall be subject to such
mark-up rate not less than the borrowing cost of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section
208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The mark up shall be charged, on the amount so paid, on quarteriv
basis and shall be paid to the Company within ene month of the close of the gquarter by FCEL. In case it 15 nol
paid by FCEL within one month of the close of quarter, then the mark up shall be automatically settled atter
ane month by adding the samc in the principal for calculation of mark-up for the next quarter. The total
outstanding, loan/advance amount shall be repaid by FCEL to the Company after completion ol twa years.
extendable for one year, from the date of payment te financial institution on behalf of FCEL, as may be
practical based on the cash flows of FCEL. Further, if it is acceptable to Stock Exchange(s). the Company
may provide the Guarantee and/or Security directly to the Stock Exchange(s) and the same terms as stated
would be applicable.”™

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in consideration of the Guarantee and/or Security being provided on
behalf of I'CEL, the Company shall abtain necessary confirmation/counter-guarantee from FCEL to securc
the obligations of the Company. The Chief Executive is also authorized to charge fee/commission from
FCEL for the Guarantee and/or Security provided by the Company, in case required.”




"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT above authority shall remain in-force until revoked by the sharcholders
ol the Company.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chiefl Executive, any one of the Directors andior the Compuny
sceretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to complete any or all necessary required corporale
and legal formalines for the completion of above transactions, The Chief Fxecutive is also authorized 1o
delegate any of his powcers to any person inrespect of the above as he may consider appropriate.”

By orderolthe Board

|.ahore: Muhammad Irfan Khawaja
S October 2009 Company Secretary
Naotes:

1y The Members Register will remain closed from 24 October 2009 to 31 October 2009 (both days inclusive),
Transters received at TITK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Ground Floor, State Life Building No. 3. Dr. Ziauddin Ahinad
IKoad. Karachi. the Registrar and Share Transfer Office of the Company. by the close of business on 23 October 2009
witl be treated in time for the purpose of determining the entitiement of Bonus Issue and Annual General Mecting

2} Amember eligible to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as proxy to attend and vote in the
meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company at the Registered Office not later than 48
hours betore the time tor helding the meeting,

31 Inorder to be valid. an instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (i any) under which it 1s
signed, or a netarially ceriified copy of such power of attorney, must be deposited at the registered office of (e
Company, 103-C/I1, Gulberg-IIT, Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time ofthe meeting,

4} @) Individual beneficial owners of CDC entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must bring his‘her participant 11D
and account/sub-account number along with eriginal NIC or passport to authenticate his/her identity. In case of
Corporate entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of attorney with specimen of nominees shall be
produced {(unless provided earlier) at the time ol meeting.

bl lorappomting of proxies, the individual beneficial owners of CDC shall submit the proxy form as per above
requircment aleng with participant 17> and account/sub-account number together with attested copy ol theur
NIC or Passport. The proxy forin shall be witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses and NIC
numbers. The proxy shall produce his/her original NIC or Passport at the time of meeting. In case of Corporate
entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of attorney along with specimen signatures shall be
submitted (unless submitied earlier) along with the proxy form.

3} Membersare requested to notify any change in their registered address immediately.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 208 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

INSUEOFGUARANTEEANDYOR SECURITY ONBEHALFOF
FIRSTCAPITALEQUITIES LIMITED (*FCEL™):

FUEL was incorporated on 26 January 1995 as a private limited company under the provisions of the Companies
Ordimance, 1984 (“the Ordinance™). Later, on 18 June 1997 status of FCEL was changed to a public limited company.
FCEL is listed on Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited since 01 October 2001 and its principal activities include
share brokerage. conducting and publishing business research.

Authorised share capital of FCEL is Rs. 1,100,000,000 divided into 110,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each. The
1ssued, subscribed and paid up capital is Rs. 1,080,315,000 divided into 108,031,500 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- cach out
of which the Company holds 72,690,200 shares (67.27%) of the total paid up share capital of FCEL. The break up value
of FCEL shares is Rs. 15.84 as at 30 June 2009 as compared to Rs. 18.42 as at 30 June 2008, whereas market price of its

share 1s being currently trade around Rs. 90. The Eamnings/(loss) Per share of FCEL is Rs. (3.52) as at 30 June 2009 as
compared to Rs. 2,71 as at 30 June 2008.

I"CLL, a subsidiary of the Company, 1s member of Karachi Stock Exchange Guarantee Limited and a Registered Broker
which 1s required Lo comply with the Regulations of Stock Exchange to transact securities business on the Stock
Exchange. Underthe Regulations of the Stock Exchange, the members executing securities transactions at the Stock
Exchange incur various liabilities including but not limited to deposit of Exposure Margins and Special Margins.
payment of Mark to Market Losses, Final Losses and ultimate settiement of executed trades, transactions and contracts.
In consideration of the Stock Exchange allowing a Member to carry out securities transactions at the Stock Exchange, the
Stock Lxchange requires a Guarantee of a Financial Institution(s) for the due and punctual observance and performance
of all the terms, conditions and covenants on the part of the Member contained in the Regulations. The Financial
[nstitution(s) which to provide Guarantee to Stock Exchange shall undertake to pay to the Stock Exchange from time to

time on demand any sums of money, payable by member of Stock Exchange on account of default in performance of any
aforesaid terms and conditions.

The Financial Institution(s), which shall provide the guarantee to the Stock Exchange, on behalf of FCEL, has required
FCEL to provide guarantee and/or security of certain current/future moveable/immoveable propertics of the Company,
being its holding company, for securing the obligations of FCEL up to an extent of Rs. 150 million. Further, if it is
acceptable to Stock Exchange(s), the Company may provide the Guarantee and/or Security directly to the Stock
Exchange(s). The Board of Directors has recommended to provide Guarantee and/or Security on behalf of FCEL to
financial institution(s) or dircctly to Stock Exchange.

the Company in consideration of the above referred Guarantee and/or Security shall obtain a counter-
guarantee/confirmation from FCEL to secure the obligations of the Company in case it is required to make any payment.
The provision of Guarantee and/or Security, in form of investment for the period of investment, is three years, from time
to time. The terms applicable to the provision of Guarantee and/or Security are a return in the form of commission in a
manner and to the extent as determined by the Chief Executive of the Company in the best interest of the Company. This
Livarantee and/or Security 18 required to be issued by against adequate charge on the existing/future
immoveable/moveable properties of the Company to the extent as required in a manner as determined by the Chief
Lxecutive in the best interest of the Company. The Chief Executive of the Company is to be authorized to charge
Guarantee Commission in a manner as he may deems appropriate and to complete all the corporate and legal formalities

in respect of the above. The Chief Executive is also authorized to delegate his above referred powers to any person as he
may deem fit and appropriate.

The benefits likely to accrue to the Company shall include receipt of markup on the actual amounts, if any, advanced to
FCEL. All the benefits accrued to FCEL, through its smooth operations, shall become part of the retumns to the Company
in tuture, since 'CEL 15 subsidiary of the Company.

|
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160(1)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE. 1984 READ WITH SRO
865(1)/2000 DATED 06 DECEMBER 2000

I'his stalement sets out the material facts pertaining 1o the special business to be transacted at the Annual General
Mezsting af the Company tobe held on 31 October 2009.

INVESTMENTS TO BE MADE BY THE COMPANY BY WAY OF PROVIDING GUARANTEE AND/OR
SECURITY

The Company 18 fully authorzed by 11s Memorandum of Association to make such investment by way of providing
guarantee and/or sceurity. The investment would be made at such time(s), as the Chief Executive may think appropriate
on behalt ot the Company and would disinvest(s) as and when appropriate. The Chief Executive of the Company or the
Company Secretary are also authorized to take all the necessary corporate and legal formalities i connection with the
proposed investment where required.

I'he following are material facts about the proposed special resolution:

Y. No. Description Information Required

(i) Name of the investee company First Capital Equities Limited (“"FCEL™)

(it)  Amountofloan oradvance Guarantee and/or Security up 1o Rs. 150 Million

(i)  Purposeofloan oradvance Guarantee and/or Security to secure the financial

obligations of First Capital Equitics Limited, subsidiary
of the Company

Not applicable
(iv}) Incase any loan had already been previded or PP
leoan has been written off to the said investee
company, the complete detail of the said loan
{v) A brief about the financial position of the 30-June-09 30-June-08
investee company on the basis of last published Rupees Rupees
financial statements
Non-current assets 775,820,054 614,779 997
Current assets 5.357.942 585 5,960,995 548

Current liabilities 4389 013.630 4970929082
Non-current liabilities 33,770,463 21,943,781
Shareholders' cguity  1,710,978,546  [.591.902.682
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(vi) Rateof mark-uptobecharged

(vii) Particulars of collateral security to be obtained
from burrower and; if not needed, yustihication
thereof;

(viii} Sowrce of funds from where loan or advance
will be given

(ix) Repaymentschedule

{(x) Benefits likely to accrue to the Company and
the shareholders frem the proposed
investments

In case Guarantee and/or Securnity 15 calied upon by the
financial institution(s)/stock exchange and the Company
is required to make payment to any financial
institution(s)/stock exchange, the amount to be paid 1o
financial institution(s)/stock exchange shal! be treated as
loans/advances to FCEL and shall be subject 1o such
mark-up rate not less than the borrowing cost of the
Company in accordance with the criteria laid down m
Section 208 of the Ordinance. The mark up shall be
charged on quarterly basis and paid to the Company
within one month of the close of the quarter. In casc 1115
not paid by FCEL within one month of the close of quarter,
then the mark up shall be automatically settled aller one
month by adding the same in the principal for calculation
of mark-up for the next quarter. The total outstanding
foan/advance amount (including principal and any mark-
up added in the same) shall be repaid after complenon of
two years and further extendable to one vear, from the
dates of disbursements of loans/ advance or at any earlier
date, as may be practical based on cash flows of FCL:L.

No collateral security is required as FCEL. is a subsidiary
of the Company.

Available cash resources and/or future internal cash
generation from the operations of Company.

The total outstanding lean/advance amount (including
principal and any mark-up added in the same as per the
calculations stated in above point no. vi) shall be repaid
after completion of two years, extendable for one year
from the date of disbursement of loans/advance. 1f
Guarantee and/or Security i1s called by the financial
Institutions, or at any earlier date, as may be practical
based on cash flows of FCEL.

The Company will receive mark-up on the actual amounts
advanced to FCEL, 1f Guarantee and/or Security is called
by financial institutions, the rate of which shall not be less
than average borrowing cost of the Company. The terms
applicable to the provision of Guarantee and/or Security
are a return in the form of commission in a manner and to
the extent as determined by the Chief Executive of the
Company which shall not be less than any financial cost
to the Company. All the benefits that will accruc1o FCEIL

on its operations will become part of the returns 1o the
Company in future.
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STATUS OF INVESTMENTS AS REQUIRED VIDE SRO 865(1)/2000 DATED 06 DECEMBER 2000

EVER GREEN WATER VALLEY (PVT.) LIMITED (“EGWVL")

The Company was granied approval in the last Extraordinary General Meeting held on 26 September 2009 to make long
term investrnent by way of issue of Corporate Guarantee to financial institution(s) for sccuring the obligations of Lver
Green Water Valley (Pvt.) Limited ("EGWVL™), a wholly owned subs idiary of Trident Construct (Private) Limited, the
subsidiary of the Company to the extent of up to Rs. 352.100 Million (Rupees Three hundred fifty two million one
hundred thousand only) for a period of one year, extendable for another one year, if required. The Guarantee has nat been
executed to date, due to some procedural requirements. The financial position of EGWVL based on the audited financial
statements as at 30 June 2009 is stated hereunder:

30 June 2009 30 June 2008
{Audited) (Audited)
Rupees Rupees

Non-current assets 1,575,602 56,400
Current assets 70,223,415 28.600
Current liabilities 259,017 45,000
Nan-current liabilities - -
Shareholders' equity 71,540,000 40,000

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

Copies of Memorandum and Articles of Association, Statement under section [60(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance,
1984, annual and quarterly accounts aleng with all published or otherwise required accounts of all prior periods of the
Company and the investee company where applicable and to the extent required, along with the financial projections of
the Company and the investee company where required, and other related information of the Company and the investee
company may be inspected/procured during the business hours on any working day at the Registered Office of the
(Company trom the date of publication of this notice till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES

The Directors of the Company and their relatives (if any) are interested to the extent of their shareholdings which may
also be inspected during the business hours on any working day at the Registered Office of the Company from the date of
publication of this notice till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting,

12—
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

| he Buard of Directors of First Capital Securities Corporation Limited ('the Company ™ or "FOSC7) is pleased o present 1he sudited
antidal finuncial stutements of'the Company for the vear ended lune 30, 20019,

Operational Results

The Compan s nnancial results for the Financial Year 2009 are summarized below

Rupees Rupecs
R cnue 54,420,822 4,093 191.511
Uinrealized (loss)/gaim on remeasurement of short térm (nyestments (1,406,536,381) 1.543.313.388
Cperaling expenses 77,564,486 181.829.6471
Operating 1loss) profir (1,429,680,045) 5451675428
Finanee and other costs 21,619,053 43 126.300)
(Loss)yprolit after taxation (1,372,710,006) >.441.443.612
armings per share (Basic & diluted) {5.48) 35 48

Luring the financial vear 2009, the Company reported an after tax loss ot Rs. 1.371. 16 million as compared to a profitof Rs. 5 441 43
million the pres tous vear. Operating expenses for the vear were Rs 77.56 million as compared to Rs 181,82 million last vear. Major
reason lor [all in revenue was the unrealized loss on remeasurement of investments as a significant drop in prices was recorded for
different investments of the Company. FY09 witnessed a major decline in the stock market performance due lo global ceonomic
recession. massive selling by foreign investors and Pak Rupee devaluation. During the year under review. Pakistan equitr marker
witnessed vne of its worst performances. The reverse rally at KSE started trom ZHFY 08 which continued in 'Y 09 with the markel
concludmg the vear on a negative note, Benchmark KSE-100 Index lost a massive 3,127 points or 42% average dechine i cquits
values in FY 09w close at the level of 7.162.

Performance of Key lnvestments

Equity Brokerage
First Capital Equities Limited {(* FCEL™)

Aller seyen consccunve vears of perpetsal growth in profitability, FCEL reported a loss of Rs, 380 mullion verses net profitol R, 293
million tor the last vear. Farning per share of FCEL was Rs. (3.32) for FY 09 compared with Rs. 2.71 for FYG8. Loss during the vear
was dug to challenging market conditions. reduced trading activities at the local bourses. steep decline in market values of the FCEI 's
share portfolio and increase in {inancial charges on short-term borrowings. Some positive factors thal helped FCEL mitigate the stock
market melidow n and domestic liquidity constraints melude iis widespread geographical presence, major clientele of oftshore fund
and Jucal aftiliate status with Auerbach Gravson (AGA), an international brokerage house based in the (JSA. Brokerage revenue tell
by onlyv 34 compared to $4% decline in average turnover at KSE while placement income increased by 52% from the previous vedr

Lanka Securities (Private) Limited (¥ L.SL™}

LSL s a Heensed stock broker on the Colombo Steck Exchange, out of a total ot only 21 firms thal are icensed by the Secunties and
I-xchange Commission ot Sri Lanka. During the vear the LSL reported an after tax profit of LKK 17.28 million translatimg into EPS of
LR 14K s compared to 2,47 in the previous year,

First Capital Investments Limited (""FCIL™)

FCIL reported loss after tax of Rs.15.70 million in FY09 agamst loss of of Rs. 5.48 million in the previous year. The main reason for
the loss can be attributed w the dismal performance of capital markets resulting in no dividend income and losses by its assoclate First
Capital Mutual Fund Limited (FCMF ).

Media

Warld Press (Pvt) Limited (*“WPL™)

During the v ear. WPL continued to show good performance. Its revenues increased by 38% to Rs. 111.65 million as compared to R,
8091 million in the previous year. After tax profit of WPL amounted to Rs. 37.67 million transiating intec EPS of Rs. 12.56,
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Medsa Times Limited (“MTL"™)

ML posted net revenues of Rs. 304 millton and a net loss of Rs. 2,38 million during the yvear. ML recorded an increase of 10% 1n
consolidated revenues over last vear but gross profir margins showed a decrease of 22% owing to the cost side which remained on
higher side due to recession and inflation including content & newspaper raw material prices, Timely measures have been taken 1o
cuttall eperaung cost by realizing HR cost and otiwr operational expenses: consohdating resources and maximizing ceonomies of
scales.

Construction
TridentConstruct (Pvt.) Limited (*Trident”}

indentis engaged 1 business ol construction, development and vther related activities of real cstate properties. The company earned
profit atter tax of Rs. 153,39 million against Rs. 229.03 million in the last financial year which translates into LLPS of Rs 7.39 as
compared to Rs 1117 last vear. Share capital was increased from Rs. 20 million to Rs. 205 million in the current vear through the issue
ol bonus shares. Despite economic recession, Trident tried to maintain steady operational growth in earnings and assct basc. Moreover,
during the vear Trident acquired management control of Ever Green Waler Valley (Pvt.) Limitd. as a wholly owned subsidiary. w hose
businvss vbpectives are installation of water filtration plants of diflerent capucities across Pakistan

Real Extate & Property Development
Pace (Pakistan) Limited (*Pace™)

Despite chailenging business cnvironment tinancial yvear 2009 was for Pace. It recorded gross profit of PKIR 317 million and
mainined its position af a progressive and dynamic real estate company. Pace earned net profit of PKR 437 million as compared to
st year's profit of PKR 1.407 million with an basic EPS of Rs. 1 93 per share. During FY(9. Pace achieved pood sales which.
a|thowegh a bit lower than previous year. represent its resilience 1o challenges and have proved it to be a sustainable real estate brund.
Overull profits however have gone down mainly due to fair value adjustments during the vear which were recorded higher lust vear
owing to market conditions prevailing at that time.

Pace Barka Properties Limited (“PBL")

During the financial year under review, PBL earned net profit afler tax of PKR |,185.43 million as compared to last vear's profit alter
tax ol PRKR 470.04 million, This increase in profitis mainly attributable mainly to substantial increase in percentage of completion of
lhe projectand recording of fair value gain on investment properties of PBL. The increasc in fair value of PBL's investment propertics
15 mainly due to the efficient and effective investment in carefully selected properties.

Future Outlook

Fhe Company had to face serious challenges in the vear under review. Management is confident that its subsidiaries and associated
companics are making their best efforts to improve the business on all fronts.

Atter a year of global murket meltdowns, a trend that also atfected the local markets, macro economic factors of Pakistan’s economy
are showing signs ot improvement. Stock market has started returning to normaley, foreign portfolio investrment is increasing. and real

vstate sectoris also showing some improvement.

1L 15 expecied opportunities for profitable business would emerge in the near future and vour Company would once again be well
positoned to avall these opportunities.

ey Financial Indicators

L'he ke financial indicators of the Company’s performance for the last six vears are annexed to the report.

Payouts for the Shareholders

I'he Company announced tinal bonus shares in proportion of Niiteen {15) bonus shares for every one hundred (100) shares held i.e,

1 5% tully paid ordinary shares. This 1s in addition to interim bonus of 10% issued earlier during the year, thus making a 16tal bonus
lssue ot 23% tor the vear.




Farnings per share

| .oss per share (basic and diluted ) for the vear ended 2009 was Rs. (5.48) as compared to eamnings per share {basic and diluted) of
1453308 per share torthe last vear,

Changesin the Board of Dhirectors

i3uring the period Mr, Omer Subhan Salamat was appointed as director in place of Khawaja Khalil Shah while Mr. Shehrvar Al Tuseer
was uppointed as dircetor in place ol Syed Kashun Kazmi,

Code of Corporate Governance

I'his statement is heing presented to comply with the ~Code of Corporate Governance™ (Codc) contained in the Listing Regulations of
e Stock Fxchanges tor the purpose of establishing a tramework of good governance. whereby u listed company 1s managed n
compliance with the best practices of Code. The directors hereby contirm the following as required by clause (xix) of the Code

1. Vhe financial statements, prepared by the management ot the Company. present tairly its state of affairs. the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in the equity.

Z. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintaned.

3. Appropriate accounting policics have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statemenls and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment,

4. Intermatioual Accounting Standards. as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of linancial statements and

'Ziti‘!E-‘l]“[llrE 1< dscloscd.

5. The sy stem ol internal contrels is sound in design and has been implemented and effectively monnored.

b. |’ here are no signiticant doubls upon the Company's abilily W continuc as a going Concermn.

£ | here has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as detailed in Listing Regulations

i. The key linancial data of lastsix years 15 summarized in the report.

9, There are no statutory payments on account of taxes. duties, levies and charges, which are outstanding and have not been

rsclosed imannexed acoounts,
Board Meetings during the year

Five meeungs ol the Roard of Directors were held during the vear. Atiendance by each director 1s as under:

Dir.r;-cturs Meetings Attended

M Salmaan Taseer (Chairman & Chiel BExecutive)
Mris. Aamna Laseer

Mr. Suhienan Ahmed Said Al-1ogani
N Omer subhan Salarmat

K hawaga Khalil Shah (Resigned)

N lamai Sand Al-Ciyjaili

sSved Kashun Kazmi

M. Shahbaz Al Taseer

M Shehirs ar Al Taseer =

LA

L4

I'he Directors who could not attend the meeting were duly granted teave by the Board,

Trading of Direclors

Derails of trading in shares of the Company during the financial year, by the Directors, CEO. CFO, Company Sceretary and then
spotses and any minor children i given in Annexure-1.

AuditCommittee

The Board of directors in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has established an Audit Commitice consisting of
tllowing Directors:
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Shahhaz Alj Taseer {Chairman)
Admna Taseer {Member)
Chrer Subhun Salamat { Member)

Purtng the vear Mr Omer Subhan Salamat was appointed in place of Khawaja Khalil Shah.
Auditors

Ihe presentAuditors. Messes KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants shall retire and be eligible (o offer themselves for re-
appointment. The Board of 1directors endorses the recommendation of the Audit Committee for the re-appaintment of Messrs KPMCG
laseer Hadi & Co.. Chartered Accountants as the auditors of the Company forthe financial year ending 30 June 2010,

Pattern nf Shareholdings

The patiern ol shureholdings as required under the section-236 of the Companies Ordinance. |984 as well as per Listing Regulations
ol stock Txchanges 1s enclosed.
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Availlmg tlus opportunity the Board desires to place on record their appreciation (o the financial institutions. Government atthoritics
and other stakeholders for their dedication and commitments. We would like to thank all shareholders of the company tor the trust and

contidence. Conclusively we would like to express our gratitude towards Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for its
persistent guidance. Finally the Board would like to record its appreciation to all staflf members for their hard work.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Dhrectors

Lahore Salmaan Taseer Aamna Taseer
09 October 2009 Charrman & Chiel Executive Officer Dircctor
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TRADING BY BOARD MEMBERS,; COMPANY SECRETARY, CFO

Annexure I

AND THEIR SPOUSE & IF ANY MINOR CHILDREN

Directors

Salmaan Taszer (CEQ)

Aamna ascer

Sulieman Ahmed Said Al-IHogani
Famal Said Al-Chaili

Sved Kashan Kazmi

Khawaja Khalil Shah (Resigned)
Shahbaz Al Taseer

Omer Subhan Salamat

Spuouses

Yinor Chiidren

C hief Financial Officer

Sved Kashan Kaznu

Company Secrefary

Muhammad Irfan Khawaja

P ———————————— e ————————————————
[

Opening
balance

as on
01-07-2008

5.386.626
8§37.739
46,996,562
930

1.731

pitl

500

1.73 1

Purchase

1 7.300,000
0,999

Bonus

4,638,
457.
21.9357.

776
779
329
513
934

270
50

D34

Sale

33.077.257

L

Closing
balance
ason

30-06-2009

27.325 402
1,305,517
35.876.834
1463
2.665

770

550

2665
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IR PAL SERIT]S CORPORATION LIMITED

KEY FINANCIAL DATA FOR LAST 8 YEARS

FINANCIAL DATA

Operating revenue
Upcrating expenses
Operation profit
Cher revenue
Financial Expenses
Taxation

Profit after Taxation

Cash Dividend Final (%)

Bonus Share Interim & Final

20049

(1,352,116)
77,564

(1,429,680)

80,135

21,619
1,546

(1,372,710)

25%

2{108

0u7

3,636,505 1,723.995

181,830

45,168

5454675 1.678,827

30,014

43,126

118

3,366

46,414

227

5,441,446 1,635,552

40%

20%

200

429,056

35,274

393,782

8,557

25,507

476

376,365

35%

2005

61,535

42,898

18,637

2,237

23,006

(2,132)

47.5%

Annexure Il

Rupees in Thousands

RAIIR

75,514

45,947

29 572

2,451

| 1.861

5.658

211,429

2003

41.699

41,899

(199)

5.582

53,017

1.320

165,547

38%

—— _'_'_'—l'_l—l_—_—_-__

2002

47 827

51,673

(3.846)

15,318

2.666



FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED ===

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009
INCORPORATION NUMBER: (1032345 OG of 11-114-1994
Shareholdings
Hhﬂfﬂuﬂ{ﬂzers - ° shares kol
| From To |
 3m | - 100 15970
Fild 101 i S00 204,536
b1 561 ) 1000 81 KUK
1145 1001 _ 3000 2 839.870
30 3001 10060 1.559.305
39 10001 _ 15000 470,071 _
29 15001 ) 20000 195,646
19 20001 ) 25000 4241561
il 25001 - 30000 308,635
¥ 30001 - 35000 I8 6]
] 35001 i 40000 415172
8 40001 i 45000 340 422
J 45001 ] 50000 183,584
4 50001 _ 53000 213.514 ¢
3 55001 D00 168 U4 l
3 65001 ' 70000 05004
1 8000 ) R5000 82000 !
3 T ) GSO00 TR
| 10000 | : 105000 1 .008
| 105001 - 110000 105 86k
! 000 : 115000 112 970l
| 115601 _ 120000 119.400
3 1 125001 ) 130000 638,075
1 140001 _ 145000 143,000
] ES000] £ 55000 | 3 il
| 155001 ' L6GOND 155871
3 L6060 ' 165000 322 5601)
2 190001 ' 195000 WL
! 200001 . 205000 100,855
| 315001 - 320000 313700
1 340001 : 345000 342,650
| 390001 g 395000 3494 908 ]
1 515001 ) 520000 517,906
| 545001 _ 550000 530,000
| 613001 620000 61600
| 640001 ' 645000 642,180
| 745001 ) 750000 748.134
1 RS0001 ) 895000 864,850
1 955001 g 960000 956,56
| 963001 - 970000 967467

_“- ——_—__III -lg-_—




FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED

No. of Sharcholdings
Sharcholders Shares Held
From To
O ———— .
| G501} " | GG LRV
~ ] 1125001 A F130000) | 129 3760
] 1160001 _ 1165000 160,72
l 1300001 1305000 | 302,185
1 130501 | 310600 1303517
1 2480001 ) 2485000 2,482,205
] 3135001 i 31 600(H) 31535358
| 3173001 ) 3 1 8ODGH 3 E7T518
1 3270001 : 32750600 3,273,108
| 7283001 - 7290000 7 288 (92
] TG23001 2 FO30000 T.925 540
l 8950001 i 89550400 B.4950,092
1 20825001 _ 20830000 20,826,730
1 23900001 239035000 25,500 840
l 26913001 26920000 269173582
| l 30285001 ) 302000010 3288 Y5
| 750001 ) 317550010 1] 752,149
[ 54053001 i 341 00000 34,086 461
3339 250,284,674
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT 30 JUNE 2009
Categories of shareholders Shares held Percentage
[Mrectors. Chief Executive Officer, 64,513,131 349,695
and their spouse and manor children
Assoctated Companies. undertakings 3.155,538 1.942
aid related parties.
NI and ICP 3.1749 828 B
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, 40.335.152 24.818
mon Banking Financial Institutions
Insurance 8927 542 5443
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 4.235.796 2 606
Share holders holding 10% or more 147.587.631 YKL
General Public
a) l.ocal 12,483,304 T.681
b) Foreign 583,209 .33%
(thers:
- Joint Stock Companies 25.988.174 | 5.99]
- Foreign Companies 86.883.000 33 459

Note: Some of the shareholders are reflected in more than ong category.




mmmimnams FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS PER LISTING REGULATIONS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

Sharchelders' Category Number of
Shares held

Associated Companies, undertaking and related parties
Worldcall Telecom Limited 3,155,538
NIT and ICP
National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Deptt 3.177.518
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 2310
Directors, CE O and their Spouse and Minor Children
Salmaan Taseer (CEO/Director) 27325402
Aamna Taseer (Director) 1305517
Shahbaz Al Tascer (Director) 700
Mr.Omer Subhan Salamat (Director) 530
Sulieman Ahmad Said Al-Hogani (Director) 35.876.834
Mr. Jamal Said Al-Ojaili {Director) |.463
Syed Kashan Kazmi {Director) 2,665
Executives
Mr, Kamil Aziz 4.589
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 25,988,174
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Institutions,
Insurance Companies, Modaraba and Mutual Fund etec. 53,498.490
Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the Company
Salmaan Taseer 27,325,402
Amyvthest Limited 84,385,395
Sulieman Ahmad Said Al-Hoqan 35,876,834




FIRST CAPITAL SEC

SRl s CORTORAIION LIMILED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in listing
regulations of Stock Exchanges for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance. wherceby a
listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1) The Board of Directors comprise of seven Directors. The Company encourages representation of
independent non-executive directors on its Board. At present the board includes at least 2
independent non-executive directors.

2) The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed
companies, including this Company.

3) All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has convicted
by a Court of competent jurtsdiction as a defaulter in payment of any loan to a banking company, a
DFloran NBFI. No one 1s a member of Stock Exchange.

4} Allcasual vacaneies occurring in the Board were filed up by the directors within 30 days thereof’

5) The Company has prepared a 'Statement of Ethics and Business Practices', which has been signed by
all the directors and employees of the Company.

o) The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

) Allthe powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions.

8) The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a dircctor
glected by the board for this purpose and the board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices
of the board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days
betore the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9) The Board arranged orientation courses for its directors during the year to apprise them of their duties
and responsibilities.

10) The Board approved appointment of Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Internal
Auditors including remuneration and terms and conditions of emplovment, as determined by the
CEO

1) The Directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements ot'the Code
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

i The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFQ before approval of
the Board.

22_




13) Lhe Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than
that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding

1) The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code,

15) The Board has formed an Audit Committee. At present the committee includes three non-executive
directors including the chairman of the committee.

16) The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the
committee have been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.

17) The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function having suitable qualified and experienced
personnel who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

18) The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the
Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants {IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, |

19) The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed [FAC guidelines in this regard.

203 The Company has fully complied with the requirements on related party transaction to the extent as
contained in the listing regulations of Stock Exchanges(s).

21) We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

Forand on behalfofthe Board
Lahore Salmaan Taseer Aamna Taseer
09 October 2009 Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Director




=== FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the statement of compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of First Capital Securities Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) to comply with the Listing Regulations of Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Lxchanges.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the statement of compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of
the Code of Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company personne! and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code. As
part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
mternal control system sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have not
carried out any special review of the internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as 10 whether
the Board's statement on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controis.

Further, Sub-Regulation (xiii a) a Listing Regulations No. 35 (previously Regulation No. 37) notitied by The
Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited vide circular KSE/N-269 dated 19 January 2009 requires the
Company to place before the Board of Directors for their consideration and approval related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s
length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price regarding proper
justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further, all such transaction are also required to be
separately placed before the audit committee.

We are only required and have ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related party
transactions by the Board of Directors and placement of such transactions before the audit commuittee. We
have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm’s length price or not.

Bascd on our review, nothing has come to our atiention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all matenal respects, with the best

practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the yearended 30
June 2009,

I.ahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
09 October 2009 Chartered Accountants
(Kamran Igbal Yousafi)
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FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexcd balance sheet of First Capital Securities Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as at
30 hunc 2009 and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It 15 the responsibility of the Company's management to ¢stablish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on theseé statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any
material misstatcment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the above said statements. An audit alse includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by
management. as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audi
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance,
1984,

b) In ouropinion:

1) the balance sheet and profit and loss account logether with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance
with the objects of the Company;

c) in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet,
profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view

otbthe staic of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2009 and of the loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended; and

d}) in our opinion no Zakat was deductible at source by the Company under Section 7 of the Zakat and Ushr
Ordinance, [980.

Lahore: KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
09 October 2009 Chartered Accountants

(Kamran Igbal Yousafi)
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=== FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009
Note 2009 2008
Rupces Rupees
Non current assets
I'roperty and equipment 3 184,140,444 114,750 664
Long term loans 4 349,429,002 330,700,000
Investmenl property 3 850,008,150 136.307.933
L.ong term investments ] 6.817,025,949 7.175,927,758
Long term deposits 7 640,838 646,838
8.201,250,383 8.358.333,193
Current assets
I'rade debts 8 1,681,297 |.885.006
Loans and advances ¢ 2,303,978 113.248
Short term prepayments 111,777 108,747
Taxuton recoverable 18,743,777 21.418.663
Cither receivables 10 11,401,062 |1.238,185
Investments at fair value through profit or loss I 1,.905,044,077 3.366,163.035
{’ash and bank balances i, 17,279,396 350,905,202
1,956.565,3064 3751832180
Currcnt liabilities
Current portion of linbilities against assets subject
1o hmancee lease 13 666,661 2R7.803
Mark up acerued 2,755,132 81.098
Short lerm borrowings - secured H 740,325,587 14,600,000
ITade and other payabiles 13 309,947,791 367.058,183
383,695,171 381,727.088
Working capital 1,572,870,193 3,370.105,092
Net assels 9,774,120,576 11,728,438.2853
Non current liabilitics -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease /3 984,576 1,647,793
sStall retirement benefits I 11,730,619 8.200,796
12,715,195 9,848,389
Contingencies and commitments 26
Net capital employed 0,761,405,381 11,718,589 696
Represented by:
Share capital and rescrves
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 17 2.502.846,740 |.623.225 160
Reserves 2,321.471.,026 2.5 945 335
| Inuppropriated profit 4.937,087,615 7.187,419,201
9,761,405,381 1,718.589.696
I'he annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Lahore; Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Director

U9 October 2000




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Operating revenue

Unrealized gain'on remeasurement of investment property

Unrealized (loss)/gain on remeasurement of short

term mvesiments
I'imancial consultancy services
Money market services
(Loss)gain on sale of investments
(rain on sale of investment property
Rental income from investment property

Eividend mcome

(peraling cxpenses
Operating (loss)/profitl
FFimance and other costs

(ther operating income

( Loss)/profit before taxation
Taxation

{ Loss)/profit after taxation

Earnings per share- basic and diluted

The annexed notes | to 30 torm an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore; Chairman & Chiel Executive Officer

0% October 2009

Note

H

18

19

20

R A R Lo L e

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
78,442,609 -
(1,406,536,381)  1.543.313.588
1,500,000 10,562 530
12,593,425 13,030,021
(66,572,022) 4,035,999.626
250,000
15,601,810 <

12,605,000 13,599 364
(1,352,115,559) 3,636,505,099
77,564,486 151 829 67]
(1,429,680,045) 5,454.675428
21,619,053 43,126,300
(1,451,299,098) 5.411,5349.128
80,135,451 30.014.447
(1,371,163,647) 5,441,563,573
(1,546,359} (117.963)
(1,372,710,006) 5441445612
{5.48) 21.74

Director




FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED
M
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Note

Cash fiows from opersting activities
t Luss )y profit before taxation
Adjustments for

I'inance and other costs

Unrealized loss/(gain) on remeasurement of mvestments at fair value

through profid or loss
Hnrealized pain on remeasurement of investment property at lair valye
through profit or loss

Nividend income

| Jepreciation

Ciain on disposat of property and equipment

Gain on disposal of investment property

Debts writien off direclly

Crain on currency translation

Lrwin on disposal of subsidiary

Mark up income

Provision for compensated absences

Provasion for staff retirement benefits
{L.ossp/profit before working capital changes
Effect on cavk flow due to working capital changes:

Irade debis

I.cams and advances

Short term prepayments

()ther receivables

Shorl o investments-nel

Irade and other payables
Caxh (used in)/ generated from operations

Stafl retirement benefits - net

I'rnanee and other costs paid

laxes paid
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing sctivities

(‘apnal expendilure meurred

Dividend receved

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Pruceeds [rom disposal of investment property

Investment property

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary

Long term loans-net

Long term investment

Lung term deposits

Mark up received
~et cash used in investing aclivities
Cash MNows from linsaciog activities

Repayment of liabilities against asscts subject o fnance lease

Shorl term bommowings-net
Net cash generated from/{used in) Gnancing activities
Nel (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of deposit account
€’ash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 12

The annexed notes | 10 30 form an intggral part of these financial statements.

Lahore:
09 October 2009

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

— — —  —— N

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
(1,371,163,647) 5441563 575
21,619,053 43126300
1,406.536,381 (1,543,313, 3%8)
{78,442,609) .
(12,605,000} (13,599 364)
1.233,187 1308132
(1,468,000) {1.5350,500)
(250,00:0) -

- 39214
(195,900) :
(249,503) -

{76,879,783) (19,750,877

247,981 549287

3.518,967 2,646,284
[.263,064,774 {1.530,525 207)
(108,098,873) 3,911,038 368

203,709 2,199 077

(2,190.730) 317,684

(3.030) 6,840

{11,377,656) 132,428

54,582,577 1,380,322, 169

1,859,911 2,588,433

43,104,781 1.385,566.640

(64,994,092) 3,206 605 008
10,856 (12,300}
(18,945,019) {47.432 402)
1,128,527 (4.064,734)
17,805,636) (51,507 .6386)
(82,799,728) 5245 005 372
(70,622,967) {111,220.44%)

23,704,364 2.643.715

1,468,000 1,583,000

1,600,000 -

(95,855,594) (377.726.966)
TI5,000 .

(18,729,002) (315, 180,00D)

(226,047,997) (3,849,161.219)

- (609 338)

76,995 202 19,635 458
(306,763,294} (4.630.035 799)

(584.361) (599 47t))

56,325,587 (281.000,000)

55,741,226 (281,599 470)
(333,821,796) 333,460, 10)

350,905,297 17,754,146
195,900 (308 Y57
17,279,396 350,905,297

Director




FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATI

O

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Balance as a1 30 June 2007

Fair value gain durning the period

Iair value pain on realization

IPrafit for the vear

Total recognized income and
cxpenses far the vear

[ssuatice ol bonus shares

Balance as at ) June 2008

Iiir value loss during the period

Loss for the vear

Total recngnized income and
cxpenses for the vear

Issuance ol bonus shares

Balaoce as at 30 June 2009

Revenue reserve

N LIMITED ===-=

The annexed aotes | to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore:
9 October 2009

Share Fair value L'nappropriated
Capital reserve Profit Total
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
1.354.354.300 L.667.703.724 2016844, 449 5038904473
. 2.903.845.335 - 2,905,945,335
- L1.667.703,724) - (1.667.705,724)
- - 5.441.445612 5,441, 445612
- 1.238.23%.611 5.441.445.612 6.679.685,213
270 870860 - (270.870.860) -
1.625.2235.160 2.905.945335 TA87.419.200  11,718,589.696
* (384.474,309) . (584.474,309)
- - (1.372,710.000)] | {(1,372.710,006)
= (384.474 309 (1L.372.710.006)  (1,957.184,315)
R77.621,580 - (877.621 581)) -
2,502,846,740 2,321,471,026 4,937.087,615 9,761 405,181
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Director

B .. D—————————— Y
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L CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED -w=sa

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20609

Ntatus and nature of business

[irst Capital Securities Corporation Limited ("the Company™) was incorporated in Pakistan on || April 1994 ay a
public hmited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad
stock exchanges. The registered office of the Company is situated at 103 C/[1, Gulberg-IT1. Lahare, e Company

is involved in making long and short term investments. money market operations and financial consultancy
SETY 1CCS,

Summary of significant accounting policies

The sigmbicant accounting policies adepled in the preparation ofthese financial statements are sctout below.

.

bd
b

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Approved accounting
standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS's} as notified under the
provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Wherever the requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
| 284 or directives 1ssued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ with the
requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the requirements
of the said directives take precedence.

Accounting convention

These [inancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except tor
investments and certain financial assets that are stated at fair value, and recognition of certain emplovee
benefits at present value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aftect the application of pelicies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumplions
and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judements about
carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (o aecounting
gstimates are recognized in the perod in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision aftects only that
peried. or in the period of the revision and future periods tf the revision affects both current and tuture
periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are sigmficant to Company's financial statements or
where jJudgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are:

a) Useful life and residual values of property and equipment Note 2 3
b Impairment of avatlable for sale financial assets Note 2.3
¢) Provisions Note 2,15
d} Staff retirement benefits Note 217
¢) Provision for taxation Note 2.20

3““



b4
L

Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. if any, Depreciation is
charged to income applying the straight-line method whereby the cost is written-off over its estimated
useful hfe at the rates specitfied in note 3 to the financial statements. Residual value and the useful life of an
assetare reviewed at leastat each financial year end.

[3epreciation on additions is charged on a pro-rata basis from the month in which the asset is DAL IO s,
while for disposals depreciation is charged up to the month preceding the disposal ol the asset. Where an
impairment loss is recognized. the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the
assets revised carrving amount over its estimated useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to incame during the period in which they are incurred.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Renewals and IMprovements are
capitalized when it 1s probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
cost ofthe item can be measured reliably. and the assets so replaced. if any. are retired Gains and losses on
disposals of assels are included in income.

I'he gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense.

X4 l.eases

[eases in term of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of own ership are ¢lassificd
as finance leases. Assets subject to finance lease are stated ar the lower of present value of minimum lease
payments under the lease agreements and fair value of the assets. less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss. ifany.

I'he related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon
the iming of the payment, Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs so as to

achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to Income
v el the lease tern.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance cost and the
recuction of the outstanding liability, The finance cost is allocated to each period during the leasc term so
as Lo produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability, Contingent lease
payments. ilany arc accounted for by revising the minimuimn lease payments over the remaming term of the

lcase when the lease adjustment is confirmed. The interest clement of the rental is charged to income over
the lease term.

Assels acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the estimated useful 1ife of the asset on 4
stralght-line method at the rates given in nete 3. Depreciation of leased assets is chargedto income.

[3epreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired while nu
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off,

Residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each financial yearend.

— "-' __''__'__"_—_-'—_l—_—___,_I 31 e ]
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Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 1o determine whether
there 15 any indication of impairment lass, It any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount 1s
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. All impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss. Individually
significant financial assets are tested for impairment on individual basis. An impairment loss in respect of
avallable forsale financial assets 15 calculated by the reference to its current fair value. Any cumulative loss

in respect of an available for sale financial assets recoginsed previously in equity is transterred Lo profit and
loss.

[mpairment losses are reversed when there is an indication that the impainment may no longer exist and
there has been a change in the estimate used to determing the recoverable amount, An impairment [0ss 15
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been charged.

For available for sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is recoginsed directly in equity.

L
o

Investments
Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

Investment in subsidiaries and associates where the Company have significant influence are classified as
available for sale, for the purpose of measurement inthe Company's separate financial statements.

Available for sale

[nvestments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period ef time but may be sold in response to the
need for liquidity are classified as available for sale. A fter initial recognition, these are stated at fair values
(except far unquoted investments where active market does not exist) with any resulting gams and losses
being taken directly to equity unti! the investment is disposed off or impaired. At the time of disposal, the
respective surplus or deficit is transferred to income currently. Fair value of quoted investments is their bid
price at the balance sheet date.

Unquoted investments, where active market does not exist, are carried at cost and tested for impairment at
eachyearend. Impairment loss, ifany, ischarged to income currently.

Investments al fair value through profit or loss

These include investments classified as held for trading or upon initial recognition are designated by the
Company as at fair value through profit or loss. Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose
of generating a profit from short term fluctuations in price or dealer's margin are classified as held for
trading. Afier initial recognition, these are stated at fair values with any resulting gams and losses
recognized directly in income currently. Fair value of investments is their quoted bid price at the balance
sheet date. Transaction costs are charged to income currently.

2.7 Investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both. Investment properties are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
given, subsequent to initial recognition these are stated at fair value. The fair value 1s determined annually
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by an independent approved valuer. The fair values are based on market values, being the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged onthe date of valuation between knowledgeable and
wilhing buyer and seller in an arms length transaction.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognized in the profit and loss account. Renta]
income from investment property is accounted for as described innote 2.18.

When anitem of property and equipment is transferred to investment property following a change in its use,
any differences arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item immediately prior to
transfer and its fair value is recognized in surplus on revaluation of property and equipment, if it is a gain.
LIpon disposal of the item the related surplus on revaluation of property and equipment is transferred to
retained earnings. Any loss arising in this manner is recognized immediately in the profit and loss account.

18 Settlement date accounting

All "regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlenent date. i.e. the
date on which the asset is delivered to or by the Company. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assels are those contracts which reguires delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the market,

2.9 Long term loan

[hese include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quated 1n an
active market.

Atinitial recognition these financial assets are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. After initial recognition these are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method less impairment loss, if any. A provision for impairment
of long term loan is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to
collectall amounts due according to the original terms of loan.

2.1 Tradedebts

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful debts based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off when identified.

2.11 Financial instruments

All the himancial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The Company de-recognizes a financial asset or a
portion of financial asset when. and only when, the enterprise loses control of the contractual rights that
comprise the financial asset or portion of financial asset. A financial liability or part of financial liabilny is
de-recognized from the balance sheet, when and only when, it is extinguished that is when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition, de-
recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit and loss account currently.

Significant financial assets include long term loan, long term deposits. short term investments. trade debts.
loans and advances, otherreceivables and cash and bank balances.

Sigmificant financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual agrecments
entered into. Significant financial liabilities are liability against assets subject to finance lease. mark up
acerued. short term borrowings trade and other payables.
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Financial assets and liabilities

Fmancial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisiens of the instrument. All financial assets and habilines are inttially measured at cost,
which is the fair value of the consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and
liabilities are subsequently neasured at fair value. amortised cost or cost, as the case may be, The particular
measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with cach item

Offsetting of financial assets and financial labilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet only
when the Company has a legally enforceable right Lo set off the recognized amounts and intends to cither
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts pavable are carried at cost which 1s the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods or services received.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a rctiable estimaie of the obligation can be made. However, provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to retiect current best estimate.

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

[nvestments sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (Repo) continue
to be recognized in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with the accounting policies for
investments. Amounts received under these agreements are recorded as "sccurities sold under repurchase
agreements” in short terin borrowings. The difference between sale and repurchase price 1s treated as
mark-up on borrowings and is accrued over the life of the repo agreement.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an un-funded gratuity plan for its eligible staff under which benetits are paid on
cessatton of employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of service, that is one vear. The hability
under the plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valnations carried out by using the "Projected Unnt
Credit Method™ and is charged to income.

The Company recegnizes actuarial gains/ losses above the 10% of present value of obligation at the end of
previous year over the expected remaining average service life of the employees.

Revenue recognition
Capital gains or losses on sale of investments are recognised in the year in which they arise.

Money market brokerage, consultancy and advisory fees are recognized as and when such services arg
provided.
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Underwriting commission 15 recognized as and when the contract 1s executed. Take up commission s
recognized at the time ofactual take-up.

[Mvidend income 15 recogmzed when the right to receive the dividend 1s established 1e. at the rime of
closure of share transfer book of the company declaring the dividend.

Return on sceurities other than shares 1s recogmized as and when 1t 15 due on time proportion basis.
Mark-up/interest income is recognized on accrual basis.
Rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expensce in the period in which these are incurred.
Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with
the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates
or lax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits,
rebates and exemptions, 1t any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered
necessdary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the vear for
such years.

Peferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences
arising from differences between the carryving amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.

Dreterred tax habilities are generally recogmzed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deterred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred rax
charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in
which case itis included in equity.

Forcign currency

All monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are transiated into rupees at exchange rales
prevailing al the balance sheet date. Transactions in fereign currencies are translated into rupees at
cxchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabititics that are measured
interms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the
date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forgign currency that are stated at

fair value are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.
Exchange gains and losses are included in the income currently,
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2.22  Cashand cash equivalents

(Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash with banks and other short term highly liguid
investments (if any) that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
msignificant risk of change in valuc.

2.23  Related party transactions
All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at anm’'s
length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using
valuation modes as admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances where. subject to approval of
Board of Directors. it1s in the interest of the Company to do so.

124  Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards

The following standards. amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009:

Revised [AS | - Presentation of financial statemenis (effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
Yanuary 2009) introduces the term total comprehensive income, which represents changes in equity during
a period other than those changes resulting from transactions with owners in their capacity as owners, Total
comprehensive income may be presented in either a single statement of comprehensive income
(effectively combining both the income statement and all non-owner changes in equity in a single
statement}, or 1n an Income statement and a separate statement of comprehensive imcome.

Revised 1AS 23 - Borrowing costs {effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009)
removes the option to expense borrowing costs and requires thal an entity capitalize borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production ot a qualifying asset as part of the cost of
thal assct. The apphication of the standard 1s not likely to have an effect on the Company's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation and TAS | Presentation of Financial
Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2009) = Puttable Fmancial
Instruments and Obligations Arnsing on Liguidation requires puttable instruments, and instruments that
impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity
only on liquidation, to be classified as equity 1f centain conditions are met. The amendments. which require
retrospective application, are not expected to have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations (applicable for annual pericds beginning on or after | July 2009)
broadens among other things the definition of business resulting in more acquisitions being treated as
business combinations, contingent consideration to be measured at fair value, transaction costs other than
share and debt issue costs to be expensed. any pre-existing interest in an acquiree to be measured at fair
value, with the related gain or loss recognised tn profit or loss and any non-contrelling (minority) interest
to be measured at either fair value, or at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and liabilities of
an acquiree, on a transaction-by-transaction basis. The apphcation of this standard 15 not iikely 1o have an
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Amended 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009) requires accounting for changes in ownership interest by the group in a subsidiary.
while maintaining control, to be recognmzed as an equity transaction. When the group loses control of

30 m——
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subsidiary, any interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at fair value with the gan or loss
recognized in the prefit or loss, The application of the standard 15 not likely to have an eflect on the
Company ‘s financial statements.

[FRS 7 -"Financtal Instrument : Disclosures”, requires extensive disclosures about the significance ol'the
financial instruments for the financial position and performance of the Company along with the nature and
extent of risk arising from such financial instruments to which the company is exposed during the vear and

at the end of the reporting period. and how the company manages those risks. Adoption of'this standard has
resulted in additional disclosures given in note 27 to the financial statements.

IFRS 8 Operatmg Segments (effective for annual periods beginning oo or after 1 January 2009)
mtroduces the “management approach™ Lo scgment reporting, [FRS B wall require a change in the
prescentation and disclosure of segment information based on the internal reports that are repularly
reviewed by the Company’s “chief operating decision maker” in order to assess each segment’s
performance and to allecate resources to them. Currently the Company presents segment information in
respect of 1ts business and geographical segments. This standard will have no effect on the Company’s
reported total protitor loss or equity.

IFRIC 15- Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 Oclober 2009) clarities the recognition of revenue by real estate developers for sale of units. such as
apartments or houses, 'off-plan’, that is, before construction is complete. The amendment is not relevant to
the Company s aperations.

[FRIC 16- lledge of Net Investment in a Foreign Operation {effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | October 2008) clariftes that net investment hedging can be applied only to foreign exchange
difterences arising between the functional currency of a foreign operation and the parent entily’s
tunctional currgncy and only m an amount equal to or less than the net assets of the foreign operation. the
hedging instrument may be held by any entity within the group except the foreign operation thas 1s beiny
hedged and that on disposal ot a hedged operation, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
that was determined to be eftective 1s reclassified to profit or loss. The interpretation allows an entity that
uses the step-by-step method of consotidation an accounting policy choice to determine the cumulative
currency translation adjustment that is reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of a net investment as if the
arrect method of conselidation had been used. The amendment is notrelevant

in addition 1o above, International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing
standards and interpretations as part of its first and second annual improvements projects, These
amendments are unlikely to have impacton the company's financial statements.

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
3 Property and equipment
Operating fixed assets 3.7 2,654,485 3.813,172
Capital work 11 progress 3.2 181,485,959 110,937,492

184,140,444 114,750,664
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Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
4 Long term loans - unsecured considered
gaod - related parties
Media Tunes Limited 4.1 349,429,002 330.700.000

4.1 I'his represents loan to an associated company and carries minimum mark up at the rate of 18%, subject to
the provisions of section 208 of the Companies Ordinance 1984. The total outstanding loan amount shall be
repatd within four vears from the date of disbursement.

4.2 The maximum aggrepate amount of loan outstanding during the year was Rs. 407.725,000 (2008: Rs.

330.700,000).
Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
S Investment property
(Opening balance 736,307,933 -
Add: Acquisition during the vear 36,607,608 736307933
772,915,541 736,307,933
L.ess, [nsposal during the year (1,350,000) -
771,565,541 736,307,933
Increase in fair value 78,442,609 -
Balance as at 30 june 31 850,008,150 736,307,633

-

5.1 Investment property acquired during the period comprises various shops acquired from Pace (Pakistan)
LLimited in various shopping malls situated in Gujrat and Gujranwala. The carrying amount of investment
property is the fair value of property as determined by approved independent valuer M/s Negotiators as at 3{)
Jung 2009, Fair value was determined giving due regard to the recent market transactions for similar
properties inthe same location and conditions as the company's investment property.

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
6 Liong term investments - available for sale

Subsidiary company - Listed

First Capital Equities Limited
34,265,200 {2008: 43,412,160) fully paid

ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each
Lquity held 50,23% (2008: 50.23%) 6,065,937,168 || 1,510.135,040

Purchase of investment at market price - 5.508.752.487
Sale of mvestment at market price - (3,658.855,694)
Fair value adjustment (1,748,424,744)l| 2,903.945 333

20.1 4,917,512,424 6,665937 168
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Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Suhsidiary companies - Unlisted
Mileage (Private) Limited (formerly First Capital
Associates {Private) Limited) - wholly owned
Nil (2008; 10§.000) fully paid ordinary shares -
of Rs 10 each 475,497 475497
Sale of all shares (475,497) -
" 475 497

4,917,512,424 6.660.412,663

First Capital Investments Limited
7.835,000 (2008:; 7.855,000) fully paid
ordinary shares of Rs10 each

Equity held: 76.56% (2008; 76.56%) 78,550,000 25,000 (00
Addition through subscription of right shares - 33,550,000

[mpaimment loss (1,709,893) -
76,840,107 78.550.000

World Press (Private) Limited
1.949 041 (2008: 1.949.04 1) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs.10/- cach

Equity held 65% (2008: 653%) 19,490,410 4,501,250
Addition through subscription of right shares . 14,989,160
19,490,410 19,490.4]0

Trident Construct (Private) Limited
10.455.000 (2008:1,020,000) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rsl10 each 6.2 10,200,000 [ 0.200,000
Equity held: 51.76% (2008:51.76%)

Lanka Securities {Private) Limited
Foreign entity
7.129.800 (2008: 7,129,800} fully paid
ordinary shares of LKR. 10 cach

Lquity held: 31% {2008: 31%) 46,229,683 8. 170,141
Addition through subscription of right shares . 38.059.542
46,229,683 46,229 683
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Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Associated company - Listed
Media Times Limited
31,449,389 (2008: 11.000,000) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs10 each
Equity held: 23.45% (2008; 10.95%) 110,000,000 110,000,000
Purchasc of investment at market price 20,449 389 shares 227,757,890 -
Fair value adjustment 1,163,950,435 -
6.3 1,501,708,325 | 10.000,000
Associated companies - Unlisted
Pace Super Mall (Private) Limited
4,500 (2008: 4,500) tully paid ordinary
shares of Rs10 each
Equity beld: 10% (2008: [0%) 6.4 45,000 45,000

Pace Barka Properties Limited
24,500,000 (2008: 24.500,000) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs10 each

Equity held: 8.03% (2008: 8.03%) 245,000,000 20.000.000
Addition through subscription of right shares - 225.000,000
6.4 245,000,000 245,000,000

Total investiments _ 6,817,025,949  7.175.927 758

0.1 Al subsidiaries and associated companies have been incorporated in Pakistan except for Lanka Securities
(Private) Limited which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

6.2 During the year Trident Construct (Private) Limited issued bonus shares @ 905% and 1.99% dated 1 March
2009 and 25 June 2009 respectively.

6.3 Theshares having market value amounting to Rs. 1,303 million are pledged.

6.4 The Company's investment in Pace Super Mall (Private) Limited and Pace Barka Properties Limited is fess
than 20%, however these have been considered as associates as per the requirements of IAS 28 'Investment

in Associates', as the Company has significant influence over the financial and operating policies of these
companies.
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Note

~1

Long term deposits
Deposits with leasing companies

Deposits with others

o Trade debts

Unsecured, considered good:
Money market receivables

Y L.oans and advances -

Unsecured, considered good
Advances to staff 91

s ey LA ok SECURTTTES € OB PORATLO

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
609,338 60Y, 538

37,500 37,5060
646,838 646,858

1,681,297 1,885,006
2,303,978 113,248

9.1 Advances given to staff for expenses are in accordance with the Company’s policy, Such advances are
unsecured, interest free and are adjusted against salary/ expense clairms. These advances are secured against
oratulty. Advance to stalf do not include any amount due from Chief Lxecutive and Directors (2008: Nil).
However. they includes an amount due from an executive of Rs.2,000,000 (2008: Nil) which is as per terms

ol his employment and secured agamst gratuity,

Note

10 Other receivables

Dividend

Mark up receivable on long term loan
Taxation refundable

Service charges refundable from Pace
Others

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
11,804 PIL111, 164
- 115.410
6,677,426
4,561,836 .
150,000 11.606
11,401,062 |1.238, 185
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These are made up a3 onder:

Held for trading
Relaled paries
{Mbers

Others-related parties

Add. Unreahsed (loss)ygain on account
of remeasurement to fair value

™Note

11.1 Held for iradiog - related parties
[nsurance
Shaheen Insurance Company Limited
Equty held 1.38% (2008:0.96%)
11.2 Held for trading - others
Cement
DG Khan Cement Company Limited
Pioneer Cement Limited
Insurance
Adamjee Insurance Company Limiled
Cable and Electrical goada
Pak Electron Limited
Commercial Bank / Investment co.
Askari Commercial Bank Limited
IS bank Lirnited
Habib bank Limited
Bank Aifaluk Limited
United Bank Limited
Textile composit
Nishat Mills Lomited
Fael and Enerpy
Bosicar Pakistan Limited
Pak il Fields Lid.
Pakistan State il Company Lid.
Leasiog
Standard Chartered Leasing Limited
Food & Personal care products
Zulfigar industmes Limited
Funds
Nameco Belanced Fund Lirmited
Dawnod [slamic Fund - Units

11.3 Others-related parties
First Capitz]l Equities Limited

Equiry held 17.06% (2008:17.06%)
Worldcall Telecom Lumated

Eguly held 0.74% (2008 0.9%)
Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Equity held 13.53% (2008; 14.9%)

L3
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Short term investments ~ at fair value through profit and loss

FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED ==w==x

30 June 2009 30 Juoe 2608
Carrying Fair Carrying Fauir
Note Value Yalue Valoe Valoe
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
IHi 36,730,831 21,855,600 14 833,051 14,865,419
1.2 3R AIR 975 21,767,592 51,533,644 44 /09, 599
1.3 3.236,430,652 1861, 419888 1,756 482,750 3306047517
3, 311,580,458  1,905.044,077 1,822,849.447 3366,163,035
(1,406,536,381) - 1,543,313 588 3
1.905,044.077 1,905,044,077 3,366,163,035 3,366,163,035
e O e
Mumber of shares/certificates 30 June 2009 30 June 2iH0Y
109 2004 Carrying Fair f,af‘r}rmg Fau-
Value Value Value YVilow
Rupees Hupecs Rupres Rupees
K12.,513 168 720 36,730,831 11,856,600 14,833 051 14 Re2 61D
70, D 55,000 3,573,580 1,075,500 3,368,967 3,692,700
349 354 49 0.831 4,739 12,930,044 G OGS (05
10,000 10,000 2,164,256 £39.900 2752 167 2,707 200
o3 Q3 5,208 1,279 6236 3,208
52,004 52,000 1,506,990 794,560 2.037.250 2089 880
101,000 101,000 1,387,740 &09.030 1. 746 150 1.387.740
19,180 3,900 2 444 356 1,650,631 212 005 813,657
- 106,000 - - 5,152,500 4,106,000
25,01 - 1,553,594 057 250 - A
20,004 2 049,395 756,400 - -
150,04 150,000 2.010.000 1,044,000 3435225 2,010,000
18,000 - 3 562 8R4 2,626,200 - -
12 500 3,556,809 2.670,625 . A
70,000 70,000 427,000 140,700 777,000 427 000
12,980 15,00%) 1,805,400 B21.634 2,622,000 2,907,000
1,435.200 1435200 13,361,712 6,774,144 13,593 200 13.361.712
- 11,021 - - 1,000 GUH} 1,105,404
38,418,975 21,767,592 51,533,644 44,600 5040
18,425,000 14, 740,000 2263,327.000 1,6694673,500 695298500 2,263 327,000
6,371,207 77372407 92 500 924 15,928 008 141977748 112,344 2446
31,508,668 32.85],668 ERD 593 726 175818367 019 106,504 931,01627!1

11.3.1 Thisincludes 2.9 million shares held under lien as security by National Accountsbility Bureau, Referto note 26.1.

10.4 Theshares having market value amnonnting to Rs. 128,898,117 are pledged,

-

3,236,430,652 1,861,410,885 |,756,482.752 3.306,687.517
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Note 2009 2008

Rupees Rupees
12 Cash and bank balances
In hand 11,055 12,426
At bank
Current accounts T2 2,067 316 2,571,711
Deposit accounts 122 15,201,025 || 348,321,155

17,268,341  350.892 866
17,279,396 350,905,292

I2.1 Including in current accountis Sri Lankan Rupees amountingto LKR: 2,716,355 (2008: LKR:2,716,855).

12.2  The balance in deposit accounts bear mark up which ranges trom 0.5% to 10.75% (2008; 2.85% (o
10.75%)} per annum,

13 Liabhilities against assets subject to finance lease

The amounts of future payments for the lease and the period in which the lease payments will become due are

as follows:
30 June 2009
Not later Later than one
than one year and not later
year than five years  Total
Rupees
Minimum lease payments 770,272 1,004,460 1,774,732
Future finance charge {103,611) (19,884) (123.495)
Present value of minimum lease payments 660,661 984,576 1,651,237
30 June 2008
Not later  Later than one
than one vear and not later
year than five years  Total
Rupees
Minimum lease pavments 7139347 1,760,166 2:519543
Future finance charge (171,542) (112,373) (283.913)
Present value of minimum lease payments 587,805 1,647,793 2,235 598
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13.1 Rentals are payable in monthly installments. The Company has the right 1o exercise purchase option at the
end of the lease term by adjusting the security deposit agianst the residual value of shares. The present

value of minimum lease payments have been discounted at an effective rate of 12.30% to 15.2% (2008
9.02%to 13.01%) perannum,

2009 2008
Nofe Rupecs Rupees
Short term borrowings - secured
Running finance facility with Bank Altalah Limited I4.1 70,325,587 14 (00,000

14.1 The Company has running finance facility of Rs. 75 million (2008: 75 million) from a commercial bank
under mark up arrangement at the rate of 3 Months KIBOR plus 3% per annum (2008: KIBOR plus 2% per

annum). This running finance facility is secured by pledge of listed securities.

2009 2008
Note Rupees Rupees

Trade and other payables

Bills payable 2,186,886 432.0355

Security deposit Pace Shopkeepers 2,117,750

Payablc against trading of shares - 2376939

Payable against purchase of property 157 299,332,681 358,580,967

Accrued liabilities 3,401,034 2,788,947

Withholding tax 41,786 -

Unelaimed dividend 1,858,918 1.873,149

Other habilities 1,008,740 1,006,128
309,947,791 367,058,183

15.1 Thisamount is payable to Pace (Pakistan) Limited, an associated company, against purchase of properties as

referred in note 5.




2009 208
Rupees Rupees
16 Staffretirement benefits
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 13,329,159 10,201 283
Uinrecognised actuarial losses to be
recognized in later period (1,598,540) (2,000.487)
Balance sheet liability as on 30 June 11,730,619 3,200,796
16.1 Movement in net obligation
Net liability as on | July 8.200,796 5.567.012
Liability transferred trom other sister concerns 215,856 -
Liability transferred to other sister concemns - (18.400)
Amount recognized during the vear 3,518,967 2,664,684
Benetits payments made by the Company
during the year (205,000 (12.5300)
Net liability as on 30 June 11,730,619 8.200.796
16.2 aneﬁent in present value of defined benefit
benefit obligation is as follows:
Prescnt vaiue of defined benefit obligation
as at 01 July 10,201,283 7.516.886
Current service cost 2213116 1.848.146
Interest cost 1,224,154 731.689
Liability transferred from other sister concern 215,856 =
Liabtlity transferred to other Company - (18.400)
Benefil paid during the period (205,000) (12.300)
Actuanal {profit)/loss (320.250) 333462
Present value of defined benefit obligation
as at 30 June 13,329,159 FO.201.283
16.3 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following
in respect of retirement benefits
Current service cost 2,213,116 1 BA8. 146
[nterest cost 1,224.153 T31.689
Actuarial loss charged 81,697 84,849
Total amount chargeable to Profit and Loss account 3,518,967 2,664,684
16.4 The Company expects to contribute Rs. 3.350,967 to defined gratuity plan in 2010.

O e e LT m
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16.5 Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 12% per annum  12% per annum
-xpected rate of Eligible Salary increase in future years 1% per annum  11% per annum
Average expected remaining working hife time of employees |3 years 12 years
2009 2008 2007 2006 2003
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

16.6 tlistorical information for Gratuity plan

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 13,325,159 10,201,283 7,316,886 5,146,271 3870087
Actuanal experience adjustments o
on plan Labilities gams/(losses) 320,250  (335462) (892,554) (352,033) (262,252)
2009 2008
Rupees Rupees

17 Share capital

Authorized
300,000,000 (2008: 170,000,000) ordinary shares
shares of Rs 10 each 3,000,000,000 1.700,000.,0:00

Number of Shares 2009 2008
2009 2008 Rupees Rupeces

lssued, subhscribed

and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares ol Rs 10

each fully paid in cash 38,165,030 38,165,030 381,650,300 381.650.300
{rdinary shares of Rs 10

cach 1ssued as bonus shares 212,119,644 124,357,486 2,121,196,440 1.243.574.860

250,284.674 162,522,516 2,502,846,470 1.625.225,160

17.1 Worldcall Telecom Limited holds 3,155,528 (2008:2,049,051) shares with a percentage holding of
1.26%(2008: 1.26%).
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17.2 Movement of Number of shares

Shares as on 01 July
Bonus issue
Shares as on 30 June

Money market services

Money market income - local currency
Money market income - foreign currency

Dividend income

l.ocal subsidiary company
Other listed companies

Operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Telephone, fax, etc.

Utilities

Insurance

Printing and slationery

Traveling and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance
Postage, courier, etc.

Vehicle running expenses
Newspapers and periodicals
Entertainment

Brokerage commission and capital value tax
service charges on rental income
l.egal and professional
Advertisement

Debts written off directly
Tenderable gain paid

Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Impairment loss on Investments
Others

2009 2008
Note Shares Shares
162,522,516 135,435,430
R7,762,158 27,087 086
250,284,674 162.522.516
6,474,325 7.364.841
6,119,100 5.665.180
12,593 425 13.030.021
10,200,000 [1.111.164
2,405,000 2,488,200
12,605,000 13,599,364
201 33,684,347 26,983,354
416,953 363,500
1,373,386 1,326,095
170,900 120,000
588,209 492,281
755,363 98K.818
2.409.109 2,543 911
1,600,780 il B
53,533 59.672
4,615,306 3.604. 180
13,172 10.555
538,394 7531.560
3,257,203 130.770.826
10,177,635 -
11,805,185 8.354.732
573,497 788427
- 39219
699,965 -
i3 75 1,131,800 1.240.000
3.1 1,233,187 1.308.032
6 1,739,893 -
757,469 480 000
77,564,486 181.829.671
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20.1 Salaries, wages and benefits includes Rs. 3,518,967 (2008: Rs.2,664.684) and Rs.247 98! (2008:
Rs.549.287) in respect of gratuity fund contribution by Company and accumulated compensated

absences respectively.

20.2 Auditors’ remunerat'!nn

Annual audit fee

Fee for audit of consclidated accounts
Half yearly review

Other certifications

Qut of pocket expenses

Finance and other costs

Cost of repo transactions

Continuous funding system cost

Mark up on running finance facility

Mark up charged by related parties on short term borrowings
Finance charges on liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Loan arrangement fee

Bank charges and commission

Foreign exchange toss

Other operating income

Income from financial assets
Income on deposit accounts

Income from loan to related parties
Mark-up income

Income from non-financial instruments
(ain on disposal of property and equipment
Gamn on CFS mvestment transactions
Tenderable gain received from related party
(iam on curency translation
Gain on sale of subsidiary (Un-listed securities Mileage)
Miscellaneous income

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
475,000 475,000
425,000 425,000
100,800 160.000

21,000 30,000
110,000 190,000

1,131,000 1,240,000
9,769,314 38,595,745
2,234,648 |,368.743
9,382,375 1,051,850
- 4932
180,449 106,331
13,417 1,068,268
38,850 21,474
- 308,957
21,619,053 43,126,300
19,933,487 8,232 641
56,946,296 11,518,236
1,468,000 1,550,500
1,336,425 0,843,123
- 1,849,455
195,900 -
249,503 -
5,840 20,492
80,135,451 30,014,447
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2019 2008
Rupees Rupees
Taxation
Current 1,546,359 | 17,963
23.1 In view of the available tax losses, provision for current year taxation represents tax on rental income

under section | 5 and 16 of Incame Tax Ordinance 2001 .

23.2 The Company’s assessmenis have been finalized up to tax year 2004. All pending issues relationg to the
previous years have been resolved in favour of the company, resulting ina refund 0fRs 6,.677.426.
Retum for the tax year 2005 to tax year 2008 were filed and are deemed to be assessed,

23.3 Deferred tax

The Company has a deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 153,296,097 (2008: Rs. 112,537.932)arising on
unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences amounting to Rs. 437,307,665 (2008 Rs.
320,415,890)and Rs. 681,184 (2008: Rs. 1,121,057 )respectively. Tax losses will be carried forward tor
six years only, in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001{. However, in view of taxable profits
not available in foreseeable future owing to the effect of exempt income, the Company has not
incorporated the deferred tax asset in these financial statements.

Transactions with related parties

Related parties comprise of entitics over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence, entities
with common directors, major shareholders, subsidiary undertakings, associated companies. directors and key
management personnel. Balances with related parties are shown in the relevant notes te the accounts. The

transactions with related parties other than those which have been disclosed in other notes are as follows:

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Subsidiary companies
Finance cost charged 9,769,314 33,428,460
Mark up income 1,825,729 -
Brokerage / Commission / Loan arrangement fee paid 2,591,860 5,410.157
Dividend income 14,200,000 L1,11]1.164
Purchase of goods/services 582,546 777.057
Short term borrowings - Repo 276,000,000  720,000.000
Repayment of short term borrowings - Repo 276,000,000 890,000,000
l.ong term loan given 10,600,000 -
Long term loan matured 16,604,000 -
Placements entered and rolled over 32,200,000 675,000,000
Placements matured 32,200,000 675000000
L.ong term Investments - 106,598,702

i L e e ——— e = et
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2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Associated companies
Short term investments sold - 1,910,561,350
[.ong term Investments made 227,757,890  225,000.000
Income from financial consultancy services 1,500,000 10.562.500
Mark up income 56,456,992 11,518,236
Short term borrowing availed and repaid - 1,000,000
Long term loan given 161,276,053 330,700,000
Long term loan matured 142.547.051 -
[nsurance premium 488,937 439,901
Insurance claim 03,120 248.365
Finance cost charged - 4,932
Earnings per share - basic 2009 2008
Net (loss)/profit for the year Rupees (1,372,710,006 5441445612
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
as at 30 June Numbers 250,284,674 250,234,674
Earnings per share - basic Rupees (5.48) 21.74

For the purpose of computing earnings per share, the number of shares of the previous year have been adjusted for
the effect of bonus shares issued during the year.

Earnings pershare- diluted

There is no dilution effect on the basic EPS as the Company has no such commitments.

Contingencies and commitments

26.1 Pursuant to the agreement to purchase shares dated 23 September 2000 between ABN AMRO Asia Limited
("ABN AMRQ") and the Company, the Company acquired ABN AMRO's entire stake in First Capital
Equities Limited (FCEL) formerly First Capital ABN AMRO Equities (Pakistan) Limited ("FCABN") fora
total sum of Rs. | million.

As agreed between the Company and ABN AMRO, loans arranged for FCEL (formerly FCABN) (o
discharge the obligations of FCEL are secured specifically against defaulting clients and are repayable only
out ol amount received from such defaulting clients. The Company has provided a guarantee to ABN
AMRO that FCEL will remit all amounts received from defaulting clients to ABN AMRO.

5‘1_
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26.2 First Cpital Equities Limited, a subsidiary of the company, has availed a term finance tacility from a
commercial bank at mark up rate 13% which is repayable over a period of 18 months from the date of

disbursement in six equal quarterly installments. This arrangement is secured by legal mortgage of Rs.
533,250,000 on the property of the company.

26.3 During 2002 the senior management of the Company was contacted by National Accountabil ity Bureau in
respect of certain transactions in FIBs carried out by the Company related to Workers Weltare Fund
("WWF") during the year 1999, On review of related records and information and discussions with the
senior management. National Accountability Bureau's investigation concluded that two employees of the
Company had colluded with WWF officials to defraud WWT.

On this basis, National Accountability Bureau required the Company Lo pay or guarantee 1o pay on account
of WWF asum of Rs. 46 million. Keeping in view that public funds were involved and based an legal advise
that it was the Company's vicarious liability, the Company had paid National Accountability Bureau an
amount of Rs. 13.8 million and had provided adequate security against the balance amount recovered from
the parties involved.

National Accountability Bureau had recovered Rs 12.127 million from various partics invalved and
informed that Company’s liability stands reduced by the said amount. The Company had also paid an
amount of Rs 10 million as full and final setttement during the financial year ended 30 June 2004, Thus a
sum of Rs 23.8 million as discussed above has so far been written off in the Company’s accounts. However.
the Bureau has again raised a demand of Rs. 10 million, which remains un-recovered from various parties
involved. The Company has informed National Accountability Bureau that the said amount is not payable.
The Company has also lodged a counter claim for sums paid to National Accountability Bureau. which were
actually siphoned by the employees of WWF and other parties involved.

The Company remains contingently liable to the extentof Rs. 10,073 million.

26.4 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP™) has raised demand of Rs. 7.67 million in
respect ol tenderable gain under section 224 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in respect of purchase and
sale of shares of Worldcall Communications Limited (now Worldcall Telecom Limited. an associated
company ). Appellate Bench of SECF passed an order against the Company, The Company filed an appeal in
Lahore High Court against the order of the Appellate Bench of SECP, which has been decided in favour of
the Company. SECP has filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment of
Honorable [.ahore High Court. At present the said appeal is pending adjudication before the Supreme Court
of Pakistan and the Company is confident of its favourable cutcome, therefore no provision has been made
in the financial statements.,

26.5 Seccurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP™) has raised demand of Rs. 0.823 million in
respect of tenderable gain under section 224 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. in respect of purchase and
sale of shares of Shaheen Insurance Company Limited, an associated company. Appellate Bench of SECP
passed an order against the Company. The Company filed an appeal in Lahore High Court against the order
of the Appellate Bench of SECP, which has been decided in favour of the Company. SECP has filed an
appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment of Honorable Lahore High Court. At present
the said appeal is pending adjudication before the Supreme Court of Pakistan and the Company is confident
of its favourable outcome, therefore no provision has been made in the financial statements.
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2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
26.6 Commilments in respect of capital expenditure 239,830,434  258,834.148

o ———
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27 Financial instruments

The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit nsk
- Liguudity risk
- Market risk

e Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company s
risk management framework. The Board is also respensible for devcloping and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies.

27.1  Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date it
counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company's credit risk 15
primarily attributable to its trade debts and loans and advances. The Company has no
sienificant concentration of credit risk as exposure is spread over a large number of counter
partics in the case of trade debts, To manage exposure to credit risk, the Company applies credit
limits to its customers and ebtains advances from certain customers.

27.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrving amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposurc. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was:

2009 20018
Rupees Rupees
Long term loans 349,429,002 330.700.000
Long term investiments 6.817,025,949 7 175827,758
Long term deposits - 646,838 646,838
l.cans and advances 2,303,978 113,248
Trade debts 1,681,297 1 .885.006
[nvestments at fair value through profit or loss 1,905,044,077  3.366,163.035
Other Receivables 4,723,636 11.238. 189
Bank balances 17,268,341 350,892.866

9.098,123,118 11,237,566,940

e e I e e e
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The trade debts as at the balance sheet date are classified in Pak Rupees,

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is:

Past due (0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 60 days
Past due 61 - 90 days
Past due 91 - 120 days
Past due |20 days

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
1,108,117 983,567

372,479 427.676
109,360 424,221
67,547 18,534
23,794 31,008
1,681,297 |,885.006

Based on past expertence the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of trade receivables past due as majority of receivables have been recovered
subsequent to the year end and for other receivables there are reasonable grounds to believe

that the amounts will be recovered in short course of time.

Bank Balances as at balance sheet date are classified as follows:

Foreign

Domestic

27.2  Liguidity risk

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
1,902,059 1,706,504

15,366,282 349,186,362

17,268,341 350,892,866

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company is not materially
exposed to liquidity risk as substantially all obligations / commitments of the Company are
short term in nature and are restricted to the extent of available liquidity. In addition. the
Company has obtained running finance facilities from Bank Alfalah Limited to meet any

deticit, if required to meet the short term liquidity commitments.
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The following are the contractual maturities of financial habilities as on 30 June 2009 :

Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease

Running finance under markup
Arrangements-secured

Trade and other payables

Mark up accrued

The tallowing are the contractual maturities of financial habilities as on 30 June 2008 :

Liabilities agzainst assets subject
Lo finance leasc

Running fimance under markup
Arrangements-secured

I rade and other pavables

Mark up accrued

Carrying 6 months 6- 12 months 1-2 years  More than
Amount or less 2 vears
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
1.651.237 321,450 345,212 984,575 -

70.323,587 70,325,587 - -
309947791 289 388,480 58 )RR | 8,441,361 -

2,755,132 2,755,132 . - =

384,679,747 362,790,649 2,462,962 19,426,136 .

Carrving 6 months 6-12 months I-2vears  Morc than
Amount or less 2 yeurs
Rupecs Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

2,235,598 284,696 303.109 666,383 G81.410

| 4.00¢.000 14,000,000 -

367,058.185 167,846,538 199,211,647 -
81.098 81,098 . - .
383,374 881 182,212,332 199 514,756 666,383 981,410
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Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in markcet price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arses mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered
into foreign currency. The Company is exposed to foreign currency's risk on conversion of balance in
foreighn currency account maintained in Lanka Rupees (LKR). The Company's exposure 1o foreign
currency risk for LKR is as follows:

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Foreign currency bank accounts 1,902,059 1,706,304
Net exposure 1,902,059 1,706.504
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date rate

2009 2008 24009 2008

LKR to PKR 0.66 (.58 0.70 0.63

Sensitivity analvysis:

At reporting date, 1f the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the foreign currencies with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the vear would have been lower by the amount shown below,
mainly as aresult of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign currency account balance.

2009 2808
Rupees Rupees
Effect on profit and loss
Lankan Rupee 190,144 | 70.681
190,144 1 700.681

The weakening of the PKR against foreign currencies would have had an equal but opposite impact on
the post tax loss.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on (loss) / profit for the vear
and assets / liabilities of the Company.
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Interesi rate risk

[nierest rate risk is the risk that the value ofa financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes i mark
interest rates. At the reporting darte the interest rate profile ol the Company's significant interest bearing
financial instruments was as follows:

201y} 2008 2009 2008
Effective rate Carryving amount
{in Percentage) (Rupees)

Financial Labilities
Variable rate instruments:
[abilines against assets subjec,

Lo finance lease 12.3 to 15.08 Q.02 10 15.01 1.651,237 2235598
Short lerm borrowings 15.74t0 18,5 1174w 1217 TOH3I25587 14.000.000

The Company does not account tor any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair vahie through
profit and loss, Therefore a change in inlerest rales at the reporting date would not afiect profit and 1oss
dCCOUN,

Casli flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instriments

A change i3f 1% in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss tor the year
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other vaniables, n particular foreign
currency rates. remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008,

Increase Decrease
Rupees
As at 30 June 2009 | (560,402) S60.402
As at 30 June 2008 (158,463) | 38,493

The sensitivity analysis prepared i1s not necessarity indicative of the effects an loss for the vear and assets
tabilities ofthe Company.
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(ther price risk

Other price risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

The company 1s net exposed to any price risk as there are no financial instruments at the reporting dale
that are sensitive to price fluctuations.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial habilities approximate their fair values. Fair
vatue is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability seftled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties inanarm’s length transaction.

Capital management

the Board’s policy 1s to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and markel
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the

return on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital
employed. The Board of Directors also momitors the level of dividends to ordmary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(1) to salcguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns forshareholders and benefits tor other stakeholders, and

(11)  toprovide anadequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the nsk
characteristics of the underlving assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to

reduce debi.

The Company montlors capital on the basis of the debi-to-equiry ratio - calculated as a ratio of lotal debt
to equity.

The debt-to-cquity ratios as at 30 June 2009 and at 30 June 2008 were as follows:

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Total debt 71.976,824 16,235,598
lTotal equity and debt 9.833,382,205 11,734.825,294
Debi-to-equity ratio 0.73% (.14%

EE‘_
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249 I-vent after Balance Sheet date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 09 Qctober 2009 has recommended bonus shares at the rate ot 13
shares toreach 100 shares held 1.e, 153% {2008 40%%) as a final dividend.

k1Y Duate of authorization forissue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 9 October 2009 by the Board of Directors of the Company

Lahore: Chairman & Chief Exccutive Officer Director
09 Oectober 2000
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Auditors' Report to the Members

W¢ have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited (“the Company™) and its subsidiary company (heremafier
reterred as “the Group™) as at 30 June 2009 and the related consolidated profit and loss account. consolidated
cash flow statement and conselidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereot, for the year then ended. The linancial statements of the subsidiary companies. First Capital
Investment Limited, Furst Capital Equities Limited, World Press (Private) Limited, Trident Construct
(Private) Limited and Ever Green Water Valley (Private) Limited were audited by and that of Lanka Securities
(Private) Limited was reviewed under Sri Lanka Auditing Practice Statement by other firms of auditors.
whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion in so far as it relates 10 the amounts included for soch
companics. 1s based solely on the report of such other auditors.

These timancial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to
expressan opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable i1 Pakistan. These standards
regulire that we plan and perform the audit 10 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are tree of any material misstatement. An audii includes examining. on & test basis. evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also mcludes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as. ovalvating the overal!
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasenable basis tor our
OPIIION,

In our opinien the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Group as at
3 June 2009 and the resulis of ns operations. 11s cash flows and chanpes in equity {or the vear then ended
in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Lahore: KPMG Tascer Hadi & Cuo.
09 October 2009 Chartered Accountants
(Kamran Igbal Yousafi)




FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors of First Capital Securities Corporation Limited (“the Group™) are delighted to present the
annual audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year erided on 30 June 2009,

Finaucial Overview 30 Junc 2008 30 June 2007

Rupees Rupees
Revenue 1,008 2,459
Dircet Costs | 304 275
Operating Expenses 381 636
Operating Profit 123 1,537
Share of profit of associated companies 82 60
Unrealized (loss)/gain on re measurement of investment (209) {35)
(1.0ss)/profit after Taxation (885) [ 404
Minority 1imerest (33) 220
Earnings per Share (Basis & Diluted) (3.40) 4,73

The performance of subsidiary companies of the Group are as follows.
First Capital Equities Limited (*FCEL"}

First Capital Equitics Limited (“FCEL”) had an after-tax loss of Rs. 380 million as compared to a profit of Rs.
293 million in the corresponding period last year. T.oss during the year was due to challenging market
conditions, reduced trading activities at the local bourses, steep decline in market values of the company's
share portfohio and increase in financial charges on short-term borrowings.

Lanka Securities (Pvt.) Limited ("LSL")

1.S1.1s a licensed stock broker on the Colombo Stock Exchange, out of a total of only 21 firms that are licensed
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka. During the year the LSL reported an after tax profit
ol LKR 17.28 million translating into EPS of LKR 1.48 as compared to 2.47 in the previous year.

First Capital Investments Limited (*FCIL")

FCIL reported loss after tax of Rs.15.70 million in FY 09 against loss of of Rs. 5.48 million in the previous year.
The main reason for the loss can be attributed to the dismal performance of capital markets resulting in no
dividend income and losses by its associate First Capital Mutual Fund Limited (FCMF).

World Press (Pvt.) Limited {("WPL")

During the year, WPL continued to show good performance. 1is revenues increased by 38% to Rs. 11]1.65

million as compared to Rs. 80.91 million in the previous year. After tax profit of WPL amounted to Rs. 37.67
million translating into EPS of Rs. 12.56.
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FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP

Trident Construct (Pvt.) Limited (“TCL")

TCL reported revenues of Rs. 418 million and afier tax profit of Rs. 155.59 million during the current period
under review. Share capital was increased to Rs. 205 million through issue of bonus shares. During the year
Trident acquired the management control of Ever Green Water Valley (Pvt.) Limited, as wholly owned
subsidiary, which is engaged in installation of water filtration plants of different capacities across Pakistan.

Future Qutlook

The Group had to face challenges in the year under review. As the Group is confident that its subsidiaries and
assoclated companies are making their best efforts to improve the business on all fronts.

Macro cconomic factors of Pakistan's economy are showing signs of improvement. The stock market has
started returning to normalcy, foreign portfolio investment is increasing, and real estate sector is also showing

improvement.

In view of the above the Group is expected opportunities for profitable business would emerge in the near
luture and your Group would once again be well positioned to avail of the expected opportunities.

The Board ol Directors wishes place on record its sincere appreciation and gratefulness to the stakeholders for
their estcemed support and to employees for their dedication and commitment towards to the group.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

l.ahore Salmaan Tasecer Aamna laseer
(9 October 2009 Chairman & Chiet Executive Officer Director




FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009
Note 2009 2008 -
Rupees Rupees
Non current assets
PProperty. plant and cquipment 3 595,179,826 837.651.526
Intangible assets 4 41,820,004 403, 7(H), 000
Lony werm loans 3 349 429,002 350700000
Investmeni property O 350,008,150 736307933
Investmenl in associates 7 856,991,798 534 831,039
l.ong term depoesiis and advances 8 15,2019 852 [4.802.512
I deterred tax assets 20) 367,481 -
2,709,506, 109 2. 494 v92 %13
Curreni asscts
Inventories 16,867,627 34.760.863
Urade debis g 3,705,798 389 2.599.551,840
| .oans and advances i 50,415,352 968.250.098
Short terim prepayments 2,936,503 7.211.514
Faxalion recoverable 42 600,687 42.140.736
Deposits and other receivables I 47,747,864 91.886.879
Placements {2 503,852,766 1.997 425.000
bnlerest reeervable 16,528,574 18393819
Sho ternt investnmienls I3 210,694,818 1. 435,122,313
"ash #nd bank balances /4 240,064,605 W3 870985
6,537.507,215 B.189.294.047
(wrrent liahilities
i rade and other pavables I3 943,643,480 1.100,300.523
Mark up accrued 169,619,415 92511.811
Liability apainst repurchase agreement 16 681,400,430 508,425,000
Shorl tenm bormowings [7 3,271,211 237 3.971.364.774
Current portion of liabililies against assels subject to finance lcase I8 19,132,642 17.789.895
Current portion of leng teon finance 19 40,000,000 .
5,125,007,214 5.69,392.003
Net current assels 1,412,500,001 2,498 902 044
Nel assets 4,122 006,110 4,993 894 357
Mon current liabilitics
Liabilitics against asscts subject 1o finance lease I8 20026308 37.354 781
Long term finance i9 7,000,000 -
eicrred tax hability 20 - 138.967
Stalt retirement benefits 21 50,720,965 38 885,997
77.74T.273 76.379.740
Contingencics and commitments 22
Net capntal employed 4,044,258,837 4917515117
Represented by:
Share capital and reserves
Issued, subseribed and pand up capital 23 2502 846,740 1.625.225.160
Exchange translation reserve 20,446,936 9.670,933
Reserves capitalised 538,699,000 298 968 6{H)
Lnappropniated protit 203,729.%67 2.172.678.728
Capital and reserves attributahle to equity holders of the purent 3,265,722 643 4,106.543.421
Minority intepes 718,536,194 810,971,696
4,044 258 837 4,917,515, 117
The annesed notes | to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Lahore: Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Director

09 October 2009
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FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupecs

Revenue 24 1,007.547.374 2.459,134,603
Direct costs 25 303,840,326 275,257,385
Gross profit 703,707,048 2. 183.877.218
Operating expenses 26 581,028,516 656,390 446
Operating profit 122,678,532 1.027.486,772
Other income 27 582,290,988 34%.659.93Y

704,969,520 1,876,146.71
Finance costs 28 802,716,676 390,407 891

(97,747,156) | 485,738,820
Unrealized gain on remeasurement of investment property 78,442,609 -
Share of profit of associated companies 7 81,555,645 59,680,072
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of

short term investments 13 (908,550,882) (34.524.176)

(L.oss)/Profit before taxation (846,299,784) 1.510.894.716
Taxation 29 38,285,913 106,693,908
{Loss)/Profit after taxation (884.585,697) 1.404 204,808
Minority interest (32,988.916) 219,505,111
(Loss)/Profit attribu{able to parent company (851,596,781) 1,184 695,697
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 30 {3.40) 4.73
Appropriations have been reflected in the statcment of changes in equity.
The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Lahore: Chairman & Chiefl Executive Officer Director
09 October 2009
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

[

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in) @ generated from operations 32 (276,412,589) 2.276.333.78Y
|_ong erm deposits and advances (407,540) (4. 708.479)
Rearement bepefits paid (8,491,586) 13.640.778)
binance costs paid {725,609,0062) (320,487 299)
Taxes pad {39,752,312) (110.646.844)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (1,050,673,089) 1.831.861.389
Cuash flows from investing activities
Fixed capital expenditure (229,644,990) (447.655.495)
Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment 421,925,084 DT 300
Proceeds on sale of subsidiary 725,000 -
Purchase of software (1,400,000) -
Investment property (172,948,503) (377.726.966)
Dividend received 2,827,721 12.339.777
[nvestment in associates (240,605,114) (306.963 870}
[.ong term loans (18,729,002) (304,990 0040)
Mark up received 512,351,692 312,966,194
Net cash generated / (used in) investing activities 274,501,888 {1.089.278.05%)
Cash Nuws from financing activitics
Repaviment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease {15,985,716) (9.228.468)
[Long term Lnance 47.000,000 (8,280,000}
Dividend paid to minority (9,800,004) (7.384.668)
Proceeds from issue of shares to minority - 33.691.430
Net cash venerated from financing activities 21,214,274 30,798,294
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (754,956,927) T773.381.645
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 993,870,985 286,454 519
I.ess : Adjustment of cash and bank balance of subsidiary sold (475,499) (65.696.222)
993,395,486 220,798,297
Exchange gain / (loss) on translation of deposit account 1,626,040 (3OR.937)
(ash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33 240,064,605 963 ¥70.982
The annexed notes | 1o 38 form an integral part of these censolidated financial statements.

l.ahare;

09 October 2009

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

DNrector
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s FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP s

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Status and nature of business

First Capital Secunties Corporation Limited (FCSC) (“the Parent Company ™) was incorporated in Pakistan ot 1|
April 1994 as a public limited company under the Companies Ordinance. 1984 and is listed on the Karachi. Lahore
and Islamabad Stock Exchanges. The registered office of the Parent Company 1s situated at 103-C/11. Gulbere-I11.
Lahore. The Parent Company is involved in making long and short term mvestments, money market operations and
Onancial consultancy services,

The group consists of following subsidiaries:

Compuansy Country of Nature of business Effecting Holding "%
incorporation 2009 200

First Capital Pakistan Providing investment advisory 76.56 76.56
[nyesunents services under the Non- Banking
Lnmnired Finance Companies
(FCT1) (Establishment and Regulation)

Rules, 2003.
Lanka Sril.anka  Sale/purchase of shares, 51.00 51.00
Securities consultancy services, money
(Private) Limited market operations, underwriting,
(1.51.} placements and cquity research,

etc.
World Press Pakistan Carrying on the business of 65.00 65.00
(Privaie) printers, publishers, packaging,
Limited (WPI.) advertisement and specialized

directory business, stationers

and dealing inall allied products.
First Capital Pakistan Sale/purchase of shares, 67.29 67.29
Lauities Limuted consultancy services, maoney
(FCEL} market operations, underwriting,

placements and cquity research,

ete,
I'rident Construct Pakistan Carrying on the business of all 51.40 51.00
(Private) types of construction activities
Limited and development of real estate.
Ever Green Walter Pakistan Installation and manufacturing 51.00 -
Valley (Private) of water purification plants, RO
Limited systems water sofiness system

and other related activities.
Milegage (Private} Pakistan Consultancy/advisory services. - 100.00
[.1mited
(Mileage)
1.1 Mileage (Private) Limited a wholly owned subsidiary was sold during the period and it has not been

consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.
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2 Summaryofsignificant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance. 1984, Approved
accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as notified
under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Wherever the requirements ol the Companics
{(rdimance, 1984 ordirectives issued by the Securities and Exchange Comimission of Pakistan (51:CP) difter
with the requirements of these standards, requirements ef the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or requirements
of the said directives take precedence.

2.2 Accounting convention

T'hese consohdated lnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenuon, excepl lor
investments in associates accounted for under equity method, short-term investments and certain financial
assets that are stated at fair value and recognition of certain employee benefits at present value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requirgs management to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expenience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values

ol assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised it the revision affects only that period.
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Group's financial statements or where
judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are:

a) Useful lite and residual values of property, plant and equipment Note 2.4
b) [mpairment Note 2.7
<) Staff retirement benefits Note 2. 2{)
d) Provisions Nofe 2,23
e) Provision fortaxation Nofe 2.0
f) Contingencies and commitments Note 22

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiary companies “the Group”. The financial statements of the Subsidiaries have been consoclidated
on a lime by line basis.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent Company. Control exists when the Parent Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the f{inancial and operating policies of the entity so as 10 oblamn
benefits from its activities. The financial statements of the Subsidiaries are included in the consohidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Detail of
subsidiaries is given in note 1.
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Associates

Assuciates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence. but not control, over the lnancial
and operatine policies, The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share ol the total
recoenized gains and losses of associates on equity accounting basis. from the date that significant influence
commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds 1ts
interest in an associate, the Group's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses 1s
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred Jegal or constructive obligation or made
pavments on behalf of the associate.

Transuactions eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup balances and any unrealized gains and losses or income and expenses arising from mtragroup
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising
(rom transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the entitv. Unrealized

losses arc eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only 1o the extent that there is no evidence of
IPatrnent,

sMimordv nigrest is thiat part of net results of operations and of net assets of Subsidiaries attnibutabie
interests which are not owned by the Group. Minority interest is presented separately in the consolidated
Hnanclal statements.

1.4 Property, plantand equipment

inese are stated at cost fess accumulated depreciaiion and impairment losses, Depreciation is charged 10
mcome apply ing the strarght line method whereby the cost is writen-off over its estimated useiul lite ai the
rates specitied in note 3 1o tie financial statements, Depreciation on additions is charged on a pro-rata basts
rom the month in which the asset is put to use. while for disposals depreciation 15 charged upto the month
preceding the disposal of the assei. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is
acrusted in the future periods to allocate the assets revised carrying amount over 1ts esumated usetul l11e

i osioual value and the useful life of an asscl are reviewed at least at each financial vear-enc

viaimenance and repairs are charged to income as and when iecurred. Renewals and improvements are
canjtatized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost
0i the item can be measured reliably, and the assets o replaced, if any, are retired. Gains or losses on
disposal of fixed assets, ifany, are taken to income currently.

L
N

Leases

Leases where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as {inance
leases. Assets subject te Tinance lease are stated at the lower of its fair value and present value of minimum

lease payments under the lease agreement at the date of commencement of lease, less accumulared
depreciation and impairment loss. if any.

I'hie related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upor
the thmving of the payment. Each lease pavinent is allocated between the liability and finance costs 50 as
achieve a constant rate on the balance ourstanding. The interest element of the rental 15 calculated at the rare
puplicitinthe lease and charged 1o income over the lease term.

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated oyer the estimated useful life of the asset on stratght-
Iine method atthe rates given innoete 3. Depreciation of leased assets is charged to income.

Laerreciation on additions to leased assets s charged from the month in which an asset is acquired while no
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

“esidual value and the usenul life of an asset are reviewed at least at cach financial vear-end.
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intangible asscts

aohvill

Loodwill represents the excess ol the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the nel Suir salue of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contngent Habilities of the acquiree. Goadwill is stated at cost less amy
dentified impaiment loss.

Negutive goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess o the fair value of the interest in subsidiarny s
net assets acquired over its cost ol acquisition,

The negative goodwill in excess of the tair value of non- monetary assets of the subsidiary is charged to
profit and loss.

Stock exclhrange membership cards and room

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any. The carrying amount is reviewed at each balance sheet date
to assess whether it 1s recorded in excess of its recoverable amount, and where carrving valuce exceeds
estimated recoverable amount, 1t 1s written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment

T'he carrying amount of the Group’s assets. other than inventories, are reviewed at cach balance sheet date ro
determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such mdication exists the asset's
revoverable amount is estimated in order Lo determine the extent of the impairment loss. it any.

Animpairment {oss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds s recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the profitand loss.

impairment loss is reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and
there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would
have been determined, netof depreciation and amortization, if ne impairment loss had been charged.

Investment property

Invesiment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, Investment properties are inilially recognized at cost. being the fair value of the consideration
given, subsequent to mittal recognition these are stated at fair value. The tair value is determined annually
by an independent approved valuer. The fair values are based on markel vajues, being the estimuted amount
lorwhich a property couid be exchanged on the date of valuation between knowledgeable and willing buyer
and seiler inan arms length transaction.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognized in the profit and loss account. Rentat
income tfrom mvesunent propenty is accounted for as described in note 2.24,

When an ilem of property and equipment s transferred to investment property following a change in its use.
any differences arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item immediately prior to
transter and 1ts fair value is recognized in surplus on revaluation of property and equipment. if i1 is a eain,
Lipon disposal of the item the related surplus on revaluation of propernty and equipment is transferred (o
retained earnings. Any loss arising in this manner 1s recognized immediately in the profit and loss account.
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Investments
Hnvestments in equity instruments of associates

Investments in associates where the Group has significant influence, are accounted for using the euILs
method.

I case of investmients accounted for under the equity method, the method is applied from the date when
significant influence commences until the date when that significant influence ceases. When the Parent
('ompany's share of losses exceeds the carrying amount ot the associates, the carrying amount 15 reduced to
nil and the recognition of turther losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Parent Company has
incurred obligations in respect of the associates.

Investments at fair value threugh profit or loss

These include investments classified as heid for trading or investments which upon initial recognition are
designated by e Group as at fair value through protit or loss. invesiments which are acquired principali:
for the purpose of gencrating a orofit from short term flucluations in price or dealer's Inargin are classined as
held tor trading. Afier initial recognition, these are stated at fair values with any resulung gains and losses
recognized directly in income currently. Fait value of mvestments 1s ther guated vid price at the balance
sheet date.

{nvestmenty available for safe

Invesiments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may pe sold in response to the
need for liouidity are classificd ay available for sale. Afier initial recognition these are stated at pait values
except tor unouoted investments where active market does not exist) with any resulting gams and los:
heing tasen directiy to equuy unul the investment s disposed or impaired. At the bme of disposal, the
respective surplus or deticil is transterred ro meome currently. Fair vaiue of quoted investments 1s their bid
price at the balance shect date.

Lnguoted investments, where active market does not exist, arc carried at cost and tested for impairment
cach year end, Imparment ioss. if any. is charged to income currentiy.

Held-to-puaturity financiad assers

lteld-to-maturity invesiments are non derivative tinancial assets which carry fixed or deiermimnabie
payments and fixed maturities and which the company has the positive intention and abiliry 1o hold to
maturity. After initial measurement, held to maturity investments are measured at amortized cost. [he cost
is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the imitially recognised amount
and the maturity amount, less allowance for impairment. This calculation includes all fees paid or received
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts.
Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss account when the investments are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

L oans anid receivables

| oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments thatare not
quoted in an active market. A fter initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cosl
using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calcuiated taking
into account any discount or preniium on acquisitior, and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the profil und loss account
when the Joans and receivabies are derecognised or impaired. as well as through the amortization process,
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FairValue

The fuir value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined b
reference fo quoted markel prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date except tor the units of
open end funds which are valued at the closing redemption price. Investments for witom there is o actve
marketand fair value cannot be reasonably calculated. are cartied at cost.

settlement date accounting

All "regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date. i.e. the date
an which the asset is delivered to or by the Group. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
those contracts whici require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by recuiation or
conveniton in the market.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost less any identifted impairment loss.

Long term loan

Lhese include non derivative financial assets and are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the financial asset. After initial recognition these are measured al amortized cost
using the effective interest method less impairment loss, if any. A provision for impairment of long term
loan 1s established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be sble to collect all amounts due
according tothe original terms of loan.

Deferred cost

hese included preliminary expenses and other similar expenses incurred in connection with ncorporalion
ar public offering of Group companies upto the year 2004 In order to comply with the substituted Fourth
Schedule to the Companies Orainance. {984, the Giroup has adopted the treatment allowed by Circular No,
| of 20035 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan whereby deferred costs incurred prior
to Gl July 2004 are being amurmized over the remaining available period whereas deferred costs incurred
subsequent to this date are charged to income currently.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Usable stores and spares are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. while
items considered obsolele are carried at nil value. [tems in transit arc stated at cost comprising invoice
values plus other charges incurred thereon,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business. less estimated incidenta)
selling cost.

Inventories

Inventortes except for stock in transit, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
as follows:

- Raw materials are valued using weighted average method. Items in transit are valued at cost
comprising mvoice value and other charges incurred thereon.

- Work in process is valued at the cost of material ingluding appropriate conversion cost,
- Finished goods are valued at cost comprising cost of materials and appropriate conversion cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business, less estimated incidental
selling cost.
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“i6  Iradedebts

Trade debts are carred at original inveice amount less an estimate made for doubuud debts based on a
review of all outstanding amoeunts at the vear end. Bad debis are written otf when identified.

- 17 Tradeand other pavables

| tabilities lor trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in tuture tor goods or services received.

-3 Sccurities purchased and sold under resale/repurchase agreements

Reptirchase agreenients

[nvestiments sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (Repo) continue
to be recognized in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with the accounting policies for
mvestments. Amounts received under these agreements are recorded as "securities sold under repurchase
agreements” in short term borrowings. The difference bebween sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-
up on borrowings and 1s accrued over the life of' the repo agreement.

Reverse repurchase agreements

Investments purchased with a corresponding comimitment to resell at a specified future date (Reverse repo)
are not recognized m the balance sheet. Amounts paid under these obligations are recorded as fund
placements. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up/interest income on
plucenents and s acerued over the life of the reverse repo agreement,

P

-.2%  Mark up bearing borrowings

Mark up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost being the fair value ol consideration received,

ss attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to the initial recognition, these are stated al amortized cost
o any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the profit and loss over the
peried ofthe borrowings on an effective interest basis.

.20  Staffretirement henefits
Diefined benefit plan
[ e Group operates an un-funded gratuity plan lor its cligible staff under which bencfits are paid on
cessation of employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of service, that is one vear. The liabilits
usder the plan 1s determmed on the basts of actuarial valuations carried out by using the Projected unit credit
method and are chareged 10 mcome.
Fhe Girouprecognizes actuanal gains: (losses in excess of 10% of and present value of obligation at the end
of preytous vear over the expected remaining average service life of the employees.
Lanka Securities (Private) Limited operates an un-funded gratuity plan for those employees who have
compieted specific period of service and provision is made annually to cover the obligations under the plan.
Ihese benefits are calculated with reference to last drawn salary and prescribed qualifying period of
services of the employees.

2.21  Fmancial instruments

Allthe financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party (o
the contractual provisions of the mstruments. The Group de-recognizes a financial asset or a portion of
lInancial assct when, and only when. the enterprise loses control of the contractuai rights that comprise the
Hnancial asset or portion of financial asset. A financial liability or part of financial liability 1s de-recognized
from the balance sheet, when and only when. it is extinguished that 1s when the obligation specified in the

==
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cantract is discharged. cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition. de-recoanition of the
financial assets and Liabiliies 1s stated in their respective notes

Financial assets are long term loan, long term deposits and advances, placements. short term Investments.
trade debts. advances. otherreceivables and cash and bank balances.

Financial liabilitics are classified according to the substance of the contractual agreements cntered mto.
Significant financial liabilities are long term finance, liability against assets subject to tinance lease. short
term borrowings, markup accrued and trade and other payables.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are otfset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends to either settle on net
basis orrealize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive ebligation as a result of na |
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econonilc benefits will be reguired to settle
the ohligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be inade.

Revenue recognition
a) Capital pains or fosses on sale of investments are recognised inthe yearin which they arise

b) Brokerage income. consultancy and monev market services are recognized on acerua! bases an |
when services are provided.

¢) Income on placements on account of continuous funding system is recognised on acerual basis,

d) Underwriting commission 15 recognized as and when the contract 15 executed. Take un conimiss i
is recognized at the time ol actual take-up.

c) Income from bank deposits. leans and advancss 1s recognized on accrual basie,

f) Dividend income is recognized at the time of book closure of the company declaring the dividena.

g) Return on securitics other than shares 1s recognized as and when 1t is due on time proportion basis.

h) Mark-up/interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

i) [nvestment advisory fee 15 accounted for on accrual basis.

i) Revenue from sale of goods is recorded when the risks and rewards are transferred 1.e. ondelivery ol
200ds (o customers.

k} Rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

B Revenue from printing services arc accounled for at the time of acceplance of goods oy Ln:
customers.

m ) Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenuy and costs ar
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet datu,
Stage of completion is measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work perionmed
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‘o date bear to the estimated total contract costs, Vanations in contract work, ¢laims and mcentive
pavments ure included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construclion contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred and it 1s probable that these will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period i which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected 10ss 18
recognised as an expense immediately,

-4
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognlzed as anexpense m the period m whici these are imcurred.

| B
b
=

Taxation
Crerrent

IProvision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the yvear determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax s calculated using prevailing tax rales or
ran rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years ansing from
assessments framed during the vear for such years.

Peferred

Delorred tax s accounted for using the balance sheet lability method in respect of temporary differences
aristine trom ditferences between the carrying amount of asscis and habihities in the Nnancial statcments and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the tanable profii.

Deterredtax liabifities are generaily recognized for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognized to the oxtent that 1t 15 probable that iaxable profits will be available against which the
duductible tempaorary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Dy¢ferred tax s caleulated at the rates that are expected o apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the baiance sheet date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of items credited or charged to equity 1n
w hich case it 1s ineluded in equity.

!;*-J
b
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Foreipn currency translation

I ransactions in forelgn currencigs are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
rransaction. All monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are transiated into rupees at exchange
rates prevatling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in tenns of
historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency thal are stated at fair value
are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when far values are determined. Exchange
cains and losses are included m the income currently,

| he results and financial position of Group entities that have a functional currency difterent from the
[resentation currency are translated mto the presentation currency as follows:

a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
balance sheet:

Ir) income and expenses for each tncome statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

C) all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity.
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When a foreign operation s sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recounized in the
income statement as part of gain or loss on salc.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents are carried in the balance sheet al cost. For the purpose of cash {low statement.
cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash with banks and other short term highly hgud
investments (if any) that are readily converrible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
mslgniticant risk of change in value.

Transactions with related parties

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’'s
leneth at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transacuons usiig,
valuation modes as admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances w here, subject to approval of Board
of Directors. itis inthe interestof the Group to do s

Fiduciary assets

Asseis arc held in trust or in fiduciarn capacity are nottreated as assets of the Group and accordingly are nes
disclosed in these financial statemenis.

Standards, Interpretations and amendments (o published approved accounting standards

I'he following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards wili oo
cifectuive for accounting perieds neginning on or after ¢ July 2009:;

Revised IAS | - Presentation of financial statements {eftective lor annual periods begimnmg o orafier
January. 2009) introduces the term total comprehensive income, wlhich represents changesan cguity during
o period other than those chanees resulting from transactions with ovwners in their capacity as owners, Dot
comprehensive iIncome may be presented in either a singie statement of comprehensive income tetectivels
combining both the income statement and all non-owner changes in equity n a sigle statement b or 13 4
Income statement and a separaie statzment of comprehensive meomse.

Revised TAS 25 - Borrowing costs (eflective from 01 January 2009). Rey (sed 1AS 23 removes the oplion
exnenss borrowing costs and requires that an entity capitalize borrowing costs dircctly attributabic 1o the
acquisition. construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset.  I'he application
nfthe standard 1s not hkely 1o have an effecton C ompany's financial statements.

Amendments o FAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation and [AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statcments
(effective for anmual period beginning on or afier 01 January 2009) - Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation requires puttable instruments, and instruments that impose on the enlity
an obligation to detfiver to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only on haquidation. to
be classified as equity if certain conditions are met. The amendments, which become mandatory for the
company’s financial statements. with retrospective application required. are not expected to have any
mipact on the financial siatements

Revised 1FRS 3 Business Combinations tapplicable for annual periods beginning on or aftay 1 jub 2004,
breadens among other things the aefinition of business resulting in more acquisitions being treatea a-
business combinations. conlingent consideration (0 be measured at fair value and transaction Costs othe!
than share and debt isste costs to be expensed. any pre-existing interest in an acguirey 1o be measured ai tan
value, with the related gain or loss recognized in profitor loss and any non-controlling (minority pinterest 1o
be measured at either fair value. or at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and habihties of an
acquiree, on a transaction-by-transacltion basts. The application of this standard 18 not hkery to have an
citect onthe Company's financral statements.

Amended 1AS 27 Conselidated and Separate Financial Statements {eftective tor annual periods beginming
on or after | July 20097 reguires accounting lor changes in ownership iterest by the group in ¢ subsidian,.
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while maintaining control, Lo be recognized as an equity transaction. When the group loses conlrol of
subsidhary, any interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at fair value with the gatn or loss

recognized in the profit or loss. The application of the standard is not likely to have an effect on the
Company’s financial statements.

[FRS 7 - "Financial Instrument : Disclosures™, requires extensive disclosures about the significance of the
financial instruments for the financial position and performance of the Company along with the nature and
extent of risk arising from such financial instruments to which the company is exposed during the year and
at the end of the reporting period, and how the company manages those risks, Adoption of this standard has
resutlted in additional disclosures given in note 34 to the financial statements.

IFRS B —Operating Segments {effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2009) introduces
the “management approach” to segment reporting. IFRS 8 will require a change in the preseniation and
disclosure of segment information based on the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the
Company’s “chief operating decision maker” in order to assess each segment’s performance and 1o allocate
resources to them. Currently the Company presents segment information in respect of its business and
peographical segments. This standard will have no effect on the Company's reported total profit or loss or

Squity,

IFRIC 15- Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or after

| October 2009) clarifies the recognition of revenue by real estate developers for sale of units, such as
apartments or houses, 'off-plan’, that is, before construction is complete. The amendment is not relevant to
the Company’s operations.

H-RIC [6- Hedge of Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual periods beginning on or
atter 1 October 2008) clarifies that net mmvestment hedging can be applied only to foreign exchange
differences arising between the functional currency of a foreign operation and the parent entity’s functional
currency and only in an amount equal to or less than the net assets of the foreign operation, the hedging
instrument may be held by any entity within the group except the foreign operation that is being hedged and
that on disposal of a hedged operation, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that was
determined to be effective is reclassified to profil or loss. The interpretation allows an entity that uses the
step-by-step method of consolidation an accounting policy choice to determine the cumulative currency
translation adjustment that is reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of a net investment as if the direct
method of consolidation had been used. The amendment is not relevant to the Company’s operations.

In addition 1o above, International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing
standards and interpretations as part of its first and second annual improvements projects. These
amendments arc unlikely to have impact on the company's financial statements.

2.32  Proposed dividend and appropriations to reserves

Dividends declared and appropriations to reserves made subsequent to the balance sheet date are considered

as non-adjusting events and are recognized in the financial statements in the peried in which such dividends

are declared/appropriations are made.

Note 2009 2008

Property dividend and appropriation to reserves . Rageces fupess
Operating fixed assets 3.1 291,171,507 484 2%3,828
Capiutal work in progress 3.4 304,008,319 353,367,701

395,179,826 837,651 529
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5 Long term loans - unsecurcd considered good

Relared Parties

Media Times Limited

MNote

54

2009
Rupees

345,429,002

2008

Rupees

330700000

5.1 This represents loan 1o an associated company and carries mininum mark up at the rate of 18% (2008:16%).
subject to the provisions of section 208 of the Companies Ordinance 1984, The total outstanding loan
amount shall be repaid within four years from the date of disbursement.

5.2 'The Maxunum aggregate amount of loan outstanding during the year was Rs. 407.725.000 (2008: Rs.

330,700.000),

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
6 Investment property 6/
Upening balance 736,307,933 -
Add: Acquisition during the vear 36,607,608 736,307,933
772,915,541  736.307.933
[.ess: Disposal during the year (1,350,600) -
771,565,541 736,307,933
[ncrease in fair value 78,442,609 -
Balance as at 30 June 850,008,150 736.307.933

6.1 Investment property acquired during the period comprises shops acquired from Pace (Pakistan) Limited in
various shopping malls situated in Gujrat and Gujranwala. The carrying amount of investment property is
the fair value of property as determined by approved independent valuer M/s Negotiators as at 30 June 2009,
Fair value was determined giving due regard to the recent market transactions for similar properties in the
same location and conditions as the company's investment property.

Note 2009 2008
Rupces Rupees
7 Investments in associates
Associated companies-listed
First Capital Mutual Fund Limited
¢,331,000 (2008: 3,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 33,755,306 18.022 B94
Equity held:21.77% {2008: 10%)
Addition through new purchase 12,847,224 - ;
Share of loss (12,779,451) | | {4.267.588)
33,823,079 33755306
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Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Assoctated companies - Uniisted
Media Times Limited
44 455086 (2008: 24,003 .697) ordinary shdres of Rs. 10 each 218,286,326 (| 70.315923
Equity held: 33.14% (2008: 23.86%)
Addition through new purchase 227,757,890 || 121,767,130
Share of (loss) ¢ profit (854.825) || 26.203.253
445,189,391 218,286,326
Pace Super Mall (Private) Limited
4.300 (2008: 4.500) ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each T 45,000 45,000
Equity held: 10% (2008: 10%)
Pace Barka Properties Limited
24.500.000 (2008: 24,500,000) ordinary shares of Rs10 each 282,744,407 || 20.000.000
Izquity held: 8.03% (2008: 8.03%)
Addition through subscription of right shares -11225.000.000
Share of profit 05,189,921 37.744 407
377,934,328 282744 407
Total investments 856,991,798 534 831,039
Share of profit of associated companies 81,555,645 50 680,072
The operations of the company has not yet started.
7.2 Shares having market value amounting to Rs. 1,303 million are pledged.
7.3 Summary financial information of associates
2009
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss)
Rupees
Media Times Limited 2,203.368,564 764,678,674 509,240,023 (2.,578.650)
First Capital Mutual Fund Limited 210,258,261 6,952,480 (126,751,426) (134,298,872)
Pace Barka Properties Limited 7,718.844,2% 1.816,187,343 1,744,765.802 1,185,428.656
Pace Super Mall (Private)
Limited 149,089,147 148,639,147 - -
10,281,560,268 2.736,457,644 2,127,254,399 1,048,551.128
_2008
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/{loss)
Rupees
Pace (Pakistan) Limited 8.561,122.000 8.556.561,294 1| 460.888.000 1.406.970.000
Media Times Limited 2,049 408 464 923 529 324 460,534,464 109.682.935
['1rst Capiial Mutual Fund Limited 348,569,105 10,964,453 40,268,685 (42.675.881)
Pace Barka Properties Limited 5212990137 1.606,271.,645 594,166,102 470.042.429
Pace Super Mall (Private)
[.imited 134.759,095 134,309,095

16.306.848,821 11,231,635,811

2,555,857,251 1,944,019,483

fememe_e————— D —— i




ramsscsenn. FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP i
Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
8 L.ong term deposits and advances

Deposits witl

Leasing companies 9,310,811 8.515.106
Stock exchanges 1,710,000 000
Central Depository Company 100,000 137,500
National clearing company 400,0M) A 000
Others 1,189,041 [.339.7006
Advance for National Commodity Exchange Limited Membership 2,500,000 2.5300,000

15,209,852 14,802 312

9 Trade debts

Money market receivables

Unsecured. considered good 1,681,287 | . 885.00U6
Receivables against purchase of shares by clients
Unsecured. considered good .1 3097,150.,519 2244411228

Receivable agamnst professional services rendered -

related parties. unsecurcd. considered good 92 5.932.621 7.968. |22
Others

Unsecured. considered good 621073387 || 351.375.257

lInsecured, considered doubtful 85,147,819 85.163,149

706,221,206  436.738.406

[.ess: Provision for doubttul debts &3 105,187,254 01,450,622
601,033,952 345287484

3,705,798,389 2,599,551,840

0.1 It includes an amount of Rs.167.944.259 (2008: Rs. 324.209,037) receivable from related party. Mr
sulieman Ahmad Said Al-Hogani.

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
9.2 Receivable against professional services - related parties
First Capital Mutual Fund Limited 5.932.621 7436074
Shaheen Insurance Company L.imited - 3

532
5,932,621 7,968,

9.3 Provision against others

Opening provision for doubtful debis 91,450,922 74.403.850
Charge for the year 13,987,982 20914 108
Provision written back (251,650) (3.867.030)
Closing provision for doubtful debts 105,187,254 91,430,922

e 00—
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l.oans and advances - unsecured, considered good

Advances 1o suppliers
Advances to employees for expenses:
Executives

(Jthers

Stock Exchanges

FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP sesamcanc

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
17,047,230 11,226 931

7,590,655 16,693 944

101 11,670,188 10,198,270
19,260,843 26.892.210

10.2 14,107,309 930,110,948
50,415,382  968.230.098

10.1 Advances given to staff for expenses are in accordance with the Group's policy. Such advances are
unsecured, mnterest free and are adjustied against salarysexpense claims. These advances are secured agamst
gratuity. Advance to staff does not imclude any amount due from Chief Executive and Directors (2008: Nil).
However. it includes an amount due from an executive of Rs.2,000,000 (2008: Nil) which ts as per terms of

nis employment and secured against gratuity.

1.2 This represents exposure margin with the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee)} Limited under the exposure
rudes which carries mark up at rates ranging from 7% 10 8.5%o perannum (2008: 0.10 % to 9.2 % perannumj.

Deposits and other receivables

Dividend
Others

Deposits with Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited
Accrued brokerage commission

Advance Income lax

Retention money

Advance cost incurred on unbilied contracts

11.1 Others
i'nsecured. considered good
Unsecured. considered doubtful

[ ess:

Provision for bad debis

Note 2009 2008

Rupees Rupees
11,800 200,187
i1.1 18,502,574 41,716,603
ki3 - 28,701,533
318,114 3,937,591
6,677,416 54.133
17,022,502 17,022,502
3,215,448 253 328
47,747,864 01.886.879
18,502,574 41.716.603
500,600 200,000
19.002,574 42.216.605
(50:0,000) (300.000)
18,502,574 41,716,603

11.2 This represents the deposited amount with the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited against

disputed claim of Aslam Motiwala which is settled during the period.

89
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Note 2009 2008
Rupecs Rupees
12 Placements - secured, considered good
Placement on account of Contmuous Funding System
itelated party - 10340000000
Others 1,503.852,766 967 425000

e L e T

12 ¢ 1,803,852,7606 | 997 423 (00

12,1 These have been placed tor a period ranging from rhree te ninety two days ( 2008: twenty [o mnety two davs )
and carry mark up at rates ranging from 16.3% to 20% per annum (2008: 12.5% to 20", per anmum). i-air
value of quoted equity securities held as collateral 1s Rs. 1,677,179,803 (2008: Rs. 4,271.439.470 ) out of
which guoted equity securities having market value of Rs. 478,036,967 (2008; Rs, 532,689.486) were

further placed as collateral with financial institutions by the Group under repurchase transactions (reter to
Note 16.1).

13,  Short ferm investments - af fair value through profit and loss

2005 2008
Carvyiog Fair Carrying Fair
Note Yalne Value Value Yaloe
Rupees Rupees
These are made up as ander:
{ithers i3 210,168, 8% 149,189,648 51,134,388 &Y, 825 87T
Related parties i3.Z 1,609.076,810 061,405,170 1,338, 511,201 [, 367,296,436

1,819,245, T 910,694,818 |, 469 646489 1 435,522,313

Add: Unrealized gain/{loss) oo account
af remensurement to fair value {908, 550, 8812 - (34,524,176} -
910,694,818 910,694,818 1435122313 1435122313

13.1 Others
Mg 2008
Number of shares/ Carrying Falr Carrying Falr
certificates cost Value cost Valie
209 2LHIE Rupees Rupzes

Listed securities

Mutoal funds
PICIC Growth Mutual Fugd Limited 218200 218,200 5,186,614 1,332 8RO 7,375,160 5,186,014
Unut UTF Fund of Funds - 31,161 - - 3 803 883 4214 063
Emir Trust of Pakistan Units - 13,127 - . - {630,488 §.990 Br4
Dawood lslammic Fund - Units - 11,021 - - 1,000, D00 1 105,406
nafa Stock Fund - 384,594 - - 5,000,000 4,413 687
amce Balanced Fond Limiated 2,007,667 1,435,200 20,724,047 13,724,1E8 13,893 200 13,361,712

25.910,661 15.557 068 32.B02 731 30,282 406
insurance companics

Adamjee insurance Company Limited 1, (140 10,000 2.164,.256 830,000 2,752,167 l 2707200
PICIC incurance Lid 32,739 - 129,173 196,107 - J -
2,393,429 1,036,007 2,752,167 2,707,240
L.easing comprnies
Standard Chartered Leasing Limited 70,000 70,000 427,000 140,700 777,000 427,00
Dnx T.easing Pakistan Limited 34,125 - 426,563 273,000 : -
B53.563 413,70 777,000 427 000
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13.2

[nvestment companies/haonks

Askarn Commercial Bank Limited

1% Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limted

United Bank Timited
Bankislarmi Pakistan

Anf Habib Limited
KASH Bank Limited
Islamic Investment Bank
Nancnal Bank of Pakistan
Bank Alfalah Limited

Technology & communication

Pakistan Telecommunication Litmted--

Cement
Pioneer Cement Lipmited
DG Khen Cement

Textile composite
MNishat Mills Limited
D.8.Ind. Linited

Sugar
Haseeh Wagas Sugur Mills Lid.

Cable and electricsl goods
Fak Elektron Limited

Food and Allied
Zultigar Industries Limited

(hemicals
Mimir Eexins:

Refinery
Bostcor Pakistan Limaited
FPak Oil Fields Lid.

Pakistan State (il Company Lid.

Related parties
Listed sccurities

Worldcall Telecom Lnnied - pote f3.4
Pace {Pakiztan) Limited

Bledia Trmes Limifed

First Capital Mutual Fund Limited
Shahecn [nsurance Company Limited

L o-Listed securities

Pace Barka Prpoerties Limited

13.3 This meludes 2.% mulhon (2005: 2.9 million) shares held under lien as security by National Accommtability Bureau. Refer to nots 22,1 ]

11.4 The shares baving market value amounting to R, 610,050,867 are pledged

R T e N e I ———Y e oo e B S

Number of shares/ 2009 2008
cerlificates Carrying Kalr Carrying Fair

2009 008 cost Value cost Value

Rupees Rupees Rupees Hupess
52,004 52 004D 1,506, 99} 794, 560 3,037 250 2 0BY 3RO

101,004 101,006 1,387,740 62,030 1,746,150 1,387,740
17,181 3,500 2,444 3546 1,650,631 212905 R13,657
25,000 - 1,553,594 057,250 =

2,930,343 - 17,594,558 18,566,285 -
47,100 - 1,545,500 3LI50,519 - -
16,000,004 - 128,041,004 165,120,0H) -
» B, 900 - . R 902 -
- 50,000 - - 11,750 875 7,375,000
- 1040, M0 - - 5,152,500 4, 106,000
154 115,738 150,948,275 21,908 582 15,772,277
- S00 - ~ 22 7681 19320
11,380 354 849 I 76,419 154,540 [2.930 D44 9006 (196
70,0440 535,000 ': 3,573,800 2075500 3 BN UAT 3,692 700
3,650,219 2.230 040 16,799 011 13,658 7960
20,000 - 249,395 TS84, 404} -

150,000 - 1,200,000 463,504 -

2.149 3058 1,219 %0d - -

£25 000 - 5,290,000 24,058,920

£53.542 9% 1,466,042 3,763,314 6236 520K
12,980 19 (00 1.B0O5, 304 821,634 2.622.000 2.59007 1300

938 S04} - 3 284,750 1.899 965 -

150,000 150,500 2.010,(dHb 1,044,000 3.444,100 2016670
18,000 - 3,662 884 2,626,200 - -
12,50 - 3 556 800 2670625 - -

9.229.693 648,815 3444 100 20146670

210,168,890 249 2R9. 648 81,134 588 67,825,877
31,589,185 8205194 172,582 896 78971963 150,530,714 L1 13% 417 i
35870776 33,638, 66K 024 165321 200,170,000 || 541,535,821 9535, 310851
3,087,731 2 108,629,373 | 147,439,155 . - |
4,166,211 4 166210 34.371,233 T.915.870 42 074674 34371233
1928, 93k 2955 145 2213 209 037 78,788,433 || 254 350,685 260,485 935 -
1,462,957 860 515286220 13885119001 1.367.2960436

20223 790 - 146,118,950 146,118,950 -

1,609 076.B10 061,405,170 1388511 901 [ 367206435
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C ash and bank balances

Cash in hand

At bank
Current accounts - local and foreign currency
Saving accounts - local and foreign currency

14.1 The balance in saving accounts bears mark-up which ranges from 0.5% to 11% (2008: 0.5% to 10.75%)

Pl anniim.

Trade and other payables

Payable against sale of shares on behalf of

Members
Clients

Trade creditors

Advances from customers
Accrued liabilities

Withholding tax

Payable against trading of shares
Pavable against purchase of property
Sales tax

Excise duty payable

Unclaimed dividend

Security deposit of shopkeepers
Other liabilities

Bills Payable

Liability against repurchase agreement - sccured

IPavable to financial institution

MNote

4.1

MNote

2009 208
Rupces Aupees
355,686 | U732, 180
88.675,585 | | 156.039.161 |
151,033,334 | | 836,758,644
239,708,919 992 767 Bi5

240,064,605

293 870,985

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
130,339.698 3995155

295,908,945

426,268,643

10,998,392
111,552,689
67,436,373
1,214,838
299,332,681

1,858,918
2,117,750
20,676,310
2,186,886

149 726 646

18.357.819
213,379,634
136.487.475

3.815.908
2.376.959
358,580,967
385.646
11,234
2002593

14,742,307
432.055

943,643,480 1.100,300.3523

6.1

681,400,430

308,425,000

16,1 This represents the amount payable to financial mstitutions under repurchase agreements against the
securities under the arrangement as explained in note 12. The effective interest rate is 16.5% to 18% per
annum ( 2008: 12.5 % to 20% per annum ) and 1s for a period of twenty one to ninety two days (2008: twenty

to ninety two days).

92_
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Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupuees
17 Short term borrowings - secured I7.1 3,271.210,237 3.971.364.774
17.1 These facilitics are obtained from various commercial banks under mark up arrangements amounting to Rs
4.440million (2008: Rs 4,464 million). These facilities carry mark up at the rate ranging from 1 to 6 months
KIBOR plus 2.5% to 5 % (2008 1 10 6 months KIBOR plus 1.8 % to 4.25 %) per annunm with [loor limits
ranging from 14.49% to 19.52% per annum (2008: 10% to 13.5%). These are secured against pledge of
Juoted equity securities.
2009
Later than one
Not jater year and not
than one later than five
year years Total
Rupees
18  Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Mintmum lease payments 23,490,915 21,917,837 45,408,752
Fulure finance charges (4,358,273) (1,891,529) {6,249 .802)
Present value of minimum lease payments 19,132,642 20,026,308 30,158,950
2008
Later than one
Not later year and not
than one later than hve
year years Total
Rupees
Minimum lease paynients 23218111 41,753,854 64,973,965
Future finance charges (5.428,216) (4.401,073) {9.,829,28Y)
Present value of minimum lcase payments 17,789,895 37,354,781 535,144,676

Rentals are payable in monthly as well as in quarterly installments. The group companies have the right o
exercise purchase option at the end of the lease term . The present value of minimum lease payments have been
discounted at an effective rate of 12.30%to 19.39% (2008: 9.02% 10 16%) per annum.

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
19 Long term finance
lerm finance facility 47.000,00{ -
Less, Current portion (40,000,000) .

7,000,000 -
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2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
20 Deferred tax (Asset)/Liability
This comprises the following:
Deferred tax liability in respect of tax depreciation 4,364,285 2,319 856
Delerred tax hability in respect of unused tax losses & tax credits {5,231,766) (2. 380.889)
(867 481) 138.967

2001 The Parent Company has a deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 153 296,097 (2008: Rs. 112.337.932) arising
on unuscd tax losses and deductible temporary differences amounting to Rs. 437 307.663 (2008 Rs,
320,415,890) and Rs. 681,184 (2008: Rs. 1,121 057 Yrespectively. Tax losses will be carried torward tor six
years only, in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, However, in view of taxable prefits not
available in foresecable future owing to the effect of exempt income. the Company has nol incorporated the
delerred tax asset inthese financial statements.

However, some subsidiary companies recognize their respective deferred tax assets or liabilities owing 1o

theirtax position for each year.

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
22 Stafl retirement benefits

Net hability at the beginning of the year 38,885,992 25191 Ut
Amount recognized during the year 2.1 2L 110,703 | 7.062.256
Liabihity transferred from sister concern 215,856 SHLOOU
Gratuity transterred to sister concern - {18.400,
Benefits paid during the vear (8,491,586) (3.649.778)
Net liability at the end of the year 212 50,720,965 38,885,992
21.1 The amounts recognized in the protit and loss are as follows:

Current service cost 12,695,885 12.420.407

Interest cost 5.727.961 2.669.902

Net expense of 1.S1. 917,751 1.066.450

Actuarial loss recognized 769,166 330.497

Payable from previous years written off - 373,000

Total amount charged to the profit and loss account 20,810,703 17,062,256

e ——————————————————————————— § V| (i ———
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[he lalest valuation was conducted by Nauman Associates (consulting actuaries) as of 30 June 200Y.

Signiticant actuarial assumptions are as follows.

Discount rate 1 2% per annum  12% per annum
Fxpected rate of Eligible Salarv increase In future years 11%% per annum  11% per annum
Average expected remaining working hie Lime of employees 13 years 12 years
2009 2008
Rupees Ripees
21,2 The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:
Present value of obligation 49,170,730 42.783.685
Unrecognized actuarial losses (5,067.150) || (7.619,174]
Benefits due but not paid 1,474,700 167.200
45,578,280 35.3531.711
Subsidiary’s graluity obligations - Lanka Securtties (Private) Limited 5,142,685 3.554.28]
Liabilitv recognized in balance sheet 50,720,965 38.883.992

22 Contingencies and commitments

22.1 Contingencies
Parent company

22.1.1  During 2002 the senior management of the Company was contacted by Naticnal Accounlability
Burcau in respect of certain transactions i FIBs carried out by the Company related to Workers
Wellare Fund ("WWF"} during the year 1999. On review of related records and information and
discussions with the semior management, National Accountability Bureau's investigation
concluded that two employees of the Company had colluded with workers welfare fund officials
to defraud Workers Welfare Fund.

(In the basis of these investigations. National Accountability Bureau required the Company to
pay or guarantee {o pay on account of WWF a sum ot Rs. 46 millioen. Keeping in vigw that pubiic
tunds were invoelved and based on legal advise that it was the Company’s vicarious liabilitv, the
Company had paid Nanonal Accountability Bureau an amount of Rs. 13.8 million and had
provided adequate security against the balance amount recovered from the parties involved.

National Accountability Bureau recovered Rs 12.127 million from various parties involved and
informed that Company’s llablity stands reduced by the said amount. The Company had also
pald an additional amount of Rs 10 million as full and final settlement during the financial ycar
ended 30 June 2004, Thus a sum of Rs 23.8 million as discussed above has so far been written off
in the Company’s accounts. However, National Accountabiiity Bureau has again raised a demand
of Rs 10 million from the Company. which remains un-recovered from various parties involved.
The Company has informed National Accountability Bureau that the said amount is not pavable.
The Company has also lodged a counter claim tor sums paid to National Accountahility Bureau.
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22.1.2

22.1.3

which were actually siphoned by the employees of WWF and other parties involved.
The Company remains contingently liable to the extent of Rs. 10.073 million.

Securities and Lxchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP™) has raised demand of Rs. 7.67
million m respect of tenderable gain under section 224 of the Companics Ordinance, 1984, in
respect of purchase and sale of shares of Worldcall Communications Limited (now Worldcall
Telecom Lomited. an associated company). Appellate Bench of SECP passed an order against the
Company. The Company filed an appeal in Lahore High Court agaimnst the order of the Appellate
Bench of SECP, which has been decided in favour of the Company. SECP has iiled an appeal in
the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the judgment of Honorable Lahore High Court. At present
the said appeal i1s pending adjudication before the Supreme Court of Pakistan and the Company s
conlident of its favourable outcome. therefore no provision has been made i the Huance!
statements.

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP"™) has raised demand of  Rs (1823
million in respect of tenderable gain under section 224 of the Companies Ordinance. 1984,
respect of purchase and sale of shares of Shaheen Insurance Company Limited, an associated
company. Appellate Bench of SECP passed an order against the Company. The Company filed an
appeal in Lahore lligh Court againsi the order of the Appellate Bench of SECP, which has been
decided In tavour of the Company. SECP has filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the judgment ot Honorable Lahore High Court. At present the said appeai 15 penati.
adjudication before the August Supreme Court of Pakistan and the Company 1s confident of 1ts
favourable outcome, therelore no provision has been made in the [Inancial stalements,

I'or contingencies relating to tax matters, refer note 29.2.

First Capival Eguities Limited (FCEL)

22.1.4

During the year 2000 certain clients of the Company defaulted on their obligations. ABN AMRO
Asia Limited tong Kong (ABN AMRO). major shareholder of the Company at that time,
arranged for the requisite financing and assumed the open positions and obligations of the
defauvlting clients. The loans so arranged by ABN AMRO were secured specifically apainst the
ammounts recoverable from these defaulting clients and were repayable only through amounts
recovered from such defaulting clients. These loans were interest free and exchange risk had been
assumed by ABN AMRO pursuant to the loan agreements signed between the Company and ABN
AMRO. Accordinglv the Company had set off these loans and such recoverable amounts.

The Company had initiated cases against the defaulting clients for recovery of the amounts due
from them. Based on the legal opinion. the management considers that if the recovery suits
succeed entirely or partially and result in recovery of an amount from clients, the only obligation
of the Company is to remit the same to ABN AMRO. Whereas in case the recovery suits arg
unsuccesstul, the aforesaid loan will lapse for all purposes and it will extinguish the recovery of
loans from clients and this will not affect. in any manner. the financial position ot the Company. as
It does not have any obligation to pay any amounts to ABN AMRO from its own sources, The
defaulting clients had made a counter claim in the said proceedings. The eventual cutcome of
these cases or counter claims 1s uncertain at this stage.,

BE_
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22.1.6

22.1.8

22.1.9

22.1.10

The Company has agreed to indemnify ABN AMRO, its directors and affiliates from any or all
claims which may be finalized against the Company except for those mentioned above. 1he
existence and the magnitude of any such c¢laims. other than mentioned in these financial
statcments, are not presently known,

Mr. Assad ullah Sajid has filed a petition with Securities and Exchange Commission ol Pakistan
against the Company for refund of deposit of Rs. 590,740 deposited for purchase of shares on his
behalf. The management is confident that the matter will be decided in the Company's tavour

During the year 2007-08 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) served a
show cause notice lo the Company under Section 4 & 5 of Listed Companies (Substantial
Acquisition ot Voting shares and Takeovers) Ordinance 2002, alleging that the Company has
facilitated certain investors in acquisition of approximately 39% shares of Haseeb Wagas Sugar
Mills Limited. The Company has submitted its initial reply to the show cause notice to the SECP,
Subsequent to the period end, the SECP has decided the case and has imposed a fine of Rs,
200.000 on the company. The company has filed an appeal against the order of the SECP.

During the year 2007-08 a claim of Rs. 12,540,356 has becn filed by a client, Mr. Hassan yousuf,
which is not acknowledged as debt by the Company.

The return for Tax year 2003 was selected for total audit under section 177 of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001, The Taxation Officer reassessed the Income for the tax year 2003 reducing
refund from Rs 6.4 million to Rs.5.4 miltion. The Company filed appeal to the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) against the order of the taxation officer and partial relief has been aliowed
by the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). The Company has filed appeal against the order
of Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) in the Honourable Income Tax Appellate Tribunal.
The management is confident that the appeal will be decided in favour of the Com pany.

The Taxation Officer reassessed the Income for the Tax year 2004 under section 122(5A) of the
ncome Tax Ordinance, 2001, by increasing the tax liability upto Rs. 1.4 million on account of
apportionment of expenses to capital gain. The Company has filed appeal before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the said order. The management is confident thar
the appeal will be decided in favour of the Company.

During the year M/s Savari Private Limited, Muhammad Rafi Khan. Muhammad Shafi Khan and
Aura Private Limited, the clients of the company have defaulted to pay their debts amounting to
Rs. 75,411,031, Rs. 20,975,409 and Rs. 143,513,582 respectively. The company has filed a suit

for recovery from these clients. The management is confident that the company would be able to
recover the above stated debt.

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
22,2 Commitments
Commitments in respect of :
Capital Expenditure 239,830,434 367,126,852
Sale of shares 213,360,116 || 1.782.101.966
Purchase of shares 224,806,739 (| 2,338.809,306

677,997,289 4.688,038.324
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Share capital

Authorized

300.600,000 (2008: 170,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and

2009
Rupees

2008
Rupees

3,000,000,060 [,600,000,000

Number of shares

paid-up capital 2009

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

fully paid in cash 38,165,030

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
iIssued as bonus shares

38,165,030

212,119,644

2009
Rupecs

381,650,300

124,357,486 2,121,196,440)

2008
Rupees

381,650,300

1,243,574.860

250,284,674

162,522.516 2,502,846,740

1,625.225,160

(2008: 1.26%).

232 Movement of number of shares

Shares as on 01 July
Bonus 155ue
Shares as on 30 June

Revenue

Financial consultancy fee

Dividend income

Money market income

(Loss) / gain on sale of invesiments
(Gam on sale of mvestment property
Investment advisory fee from FCMF
Income from continuous funding system placements
Brokerage income

Rental Income

Revenue from printing

Revenue against construction coniracts

Worldcall Telecom Limited holds 3,155,538 (2008: 2,049,051) shares with a percentage holding of 1.26%

Number of shares

2009 2008
162,522,516 135,435,430
87,762,158 27,087,086
250,284,674 162,522 516
2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
1,500,000 10,562,500
2,638,334 3.710.239
12,593,425 13,030,021
(77,480,878) 1.,087,849922
250,000 -
6,156,162 13,308,236
440,069 6,986,804
515209462 751.39]1,694
16,294,810 -
111,646,487 80,905,382
418,299,503 491,389,805

1,007,547,374 2,459,134 ,603

98
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Direct costs

Maicrials consumed

Salaries and benefits

IF'olding and binding costs
Electricity consumed

Rent, rates and taxes

Postage and communication

stores and general items consumed
Mess and staff refreshment charges
Traveling expenses

L.ab testing charges

Sccurily services

Insurance

-nterfainment

Repair and maintenance

Courier charges

Vehicle running and maintenance
Depreciation

Others

Opcrating cxpenses

Salarics, wages and benefits
Stock exchange charges
Rent, rates and taxes
Telephone, fax, etc.

Utilities

[nsurance

Printing and stationery
Traveling and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance
Postage, courier etc.

Vehicle running

News papers and periodicals
Entertainment

Brokerage commission and capital value tax

Service charges on rental income
L.egal and professional charges
Advertisement

Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts written off directly
Fees and subscriptions

Note

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
65,058,748 42,648 800
128,282,992 153431942
4,137,425 3,241,136
2,360,511 1,590,713
4,177,211 4,730,781
560,587 662,489
39,805,957 22647252
269,278 333,221
112,739 157,837
589,517 1,255,560
- 9,750
2,948,092 1,948,118
1,089,381 1,617,185
8,388,291 2.903.739
12,746 190,471
2,326,864 1,926,220
41,734,217 34,568,345
1,985,770 1,393,826
303,840,326 275,257 385
188,871,226 273,211,882
9,059,277 36,508.980
11,431,472 10,849,597
12,382,932 14,826,130
6,151,754 6,017,229
4,240,539 3,960,783
3,399,546 5,476,156
13,797,284 16,932 951
11,869,741 14.557,137
2,914,191 4,229 366
8,182,678 6,278,541
340,607 261312
5,138,692 8,153,947
908,578 129,729,159
10,177,635 -
21,093,736 13,646,941
2,073,509 5,200,507
13,987,982 20914108
184,623,752 59,219
12,923,388 13,487,950

——%H=
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Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
1enderable gam paid 699,965 -
Advisory Fee expenses - 32,5304 11
Auditors' remuneration 20.1 2,732,692 2. 838 851
[Donations 262 47,080 264 960
Lyepreciation 3 29,485,751 24 833,061
Amortization of deferred cost - 3.013
Amortization of intangible assets 280,000 -
Business development 207,865 |.536,550
Others 24,006,644 9,855,003
581,028,516 656,390,446
20.1 Auditors’ remuneration
Auditor of
Parent Subsidiary
company companies 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Annual audit 475,000 1,021,492 1,496,492 L 53712
Consolidated accounts 425,000 - 425,004 425,000
Half yearly review 100,000 230,000 330,000 330,000
Other certifications 21,000 333,200 354,200 340 930
Out of pocket expenses 110,000 17,000 127,000 215.800
1,131,000 1,601,692 2,732,692 2,838.85]
26.2  Directors or their spouscs do not have any interest in the donee,
Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
27 (diher income
Income from financial assets
Return on deposit accounts 26,507,707 28.,026.801
Interest on term deposits 47,131.,0474 23.694.934
Income from placements 380,390,674 234 7B8.BE3
Mark-up income on loans to related parties 56,456,992 13,121,835
Income from other than financial assets
Underwriting commission 3,500,000 -
Take-up commission 3,119,351 -
Provision written back 251,650 3.867.0346
Exchange gamn 1,626,046 B75.956
Gain on sale of fixed assets 20,202,691 | .682.013
Tenderable gain received from related party - |.849 455
Gain on sale of subsidiary 17,132 -
Others 43,087,671 20,753,024
582,290,988 348659939




s FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED GROUP -

S1L

2005 2008
Rupees Rupees

Finance costs
Markup on short term borrowings 617,598,934 22]. 526455
Cuast ol repo transacLions 169.901.,439 162 618.606
Markup charged by related patties - 4.932
Finance charges on assets subject to finance lease 4,302,055 1.882.042
Term linance markup - 306,194
Continuous funding system cost 2,234,648 1,368.743
Bank charses and commission 1,774,263 2.047.931
Exchange loss - 308.957
Onhers 6,905,337 284,031

802,716,676 390.407.89]
Taxation
Current vear 39 202 362 107,370 24 ]
Prior Year - 18,810
Deterred (1,006,449) (695.143)

38,285,913 106,693,908

29.1 Since majority of the group companies have taxable losses for the year. thercfore. no numerical tax
reconciligtion 15 given,

292  The Parent Company’s assessments have been finalized up to tax year 2004. All pending 1ssues relating
to the previous vears have been resolved in favour of the company. resulting in a refund ot Ks

6.677.426.
Return for the tax year 2003 to tax vear 2008 were filed and are deemed Lo be assessed.
2009 2008
Earnings per share - basic
Net profit for the vear Rupees  (851,596,781) |, 184,695,697
Weichted average number of ordinary shares as at 30 June Numbers 250,284,674 2507284 674
Earnings per share - basic Rupees (3.40) 473

For the purpose of computing earnings per share, the number of shares of the previous year have been adjusted lor
the effect of bonus shares 1ssued during the year.

Earnings per share - diluted

There is no dilution effect on the basic EPS as the Company has no such commitiments.

S e | ) | E——
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31 Transactions with related parties

Related partics comprise of entities over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence. entities
with comman dircctors. major shareholders, associated companies, directors and key management personnel
Balances with related parties are shown in the relevant notes to the accounts. The transactions with related parties

other than those which have been disclosed in other notes are as follows:

Associated companices

Income from financial consultancy services
Mark up income

Short term borrowing availed and repaid
Finance cost charged

l.ong lerm loan given

Insurance premium

Insurance ¢laim

Brokerage income

Repurchase agreenment arrangement fee
Placements entered and rolled over
Placements matured

Income eamed on placements

Repurchase agreements entered and rolled over
Repurchase agreements matured

Mark up income on repurchase agreements
Contract services

Sale of goods/services

Purchase of goods/services

l.ong term mmvestiment made

Shert term Investments made

31 Cuash generated from operations

(1.0ss) / profit before 1axation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Finance cost
Loss on remeasurement of short term investments
Dividend income
Exchange gain
Amortization of deferred cost
Amortization of intangible assets
(am on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Oain on disposal subsidiary
Exchange translation difference
Provision for doubtful debts

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
7,656,162 23,870,736
70,131,514 1.3, 121.833
- 1,000,000
- 4.932
161,276,053 330,700,000
488,937 439 90|
93.120 248363
20,752,356 41,545,133
2,929,167 | 210,432
1,140,000,000 3,652.536.000
2,170,000,000 2.972,356.000
162,851,439 125,592,127
- 85,000,000
- §5.G00.000
- |.760.548
418,299,502 191389 805
20,947,259 61.872.423
40,900 28.936
227,757,890 -
1,116,627,404 -
(846,299,784) 1510894716
71,219,968 0. 401.406
802,716,676 || 390.407.891
908,550,882 34,524.176
(2,638.334) || (3,710.239)
- (875.956)
- 3015
280,000 -
(20,202,691)| | (1.682.013)
(17,132) -
20,085,513 19,685,007
13,987,982 20.914,108

e e ———— R | f et
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3ad debls written off directly

Retirement benehits

Share ot profit of associated companies
Provision for doubtiul debts written back
Mark up income

Profil before working capital changes

Elfect on cash low due 1o working capital changes:

(Increase ldecrease n:
Invenlories
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Short term prepayments
Deposits and other receivables
Short term mvestments - net
Placements
Increasesqdecrease) in:
ITade and other payables
Liability against repurchase agreement
Short term borrowings

33 Cash and cash equivalents
These are made up as follows:
Cash in hand

Rank balances
Treasury bills

34 Financial instruments

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
184,623,752 39219
20,326,559 L7.345.836
(81,555,645) (3%.680.072)
(251,650) (3.807.036)
(51,486,447)[| (319.632.453)
1,406,639,433 152,890,907
360,339,649  1.663,785,623
17,893,236 (19.403.792)
(1,204,606,033)|| (2.251,417.456)
917,814,710 (37.836.660)
4,973,011 (4.114.676)
42,269,449 (24.628.842)
(384,123,387} 1.172,924.710
493,572,234 || (1.008.675.000)
(97,368,757) 113,396,146
172,975,430 (| (415.5325.000)
(700,153,537) || 3.087,648.722
(836,752,238) 612,568,166
(276.412,589)  2,276.3533.789
355,686 1.073.180
194,053,047 V16,163,795
45,655,272 46,632,010
240,064,605 993.870.985

T'he group has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financial instruments.:

- Credit risk
L iquadity risk
Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of group’s risk management
framework, The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the group's risk management policies.
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34.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties
lailed completely to perform as contracted. The group's credit risk is primarily attributable Lo its trade debits
and loans and advances. The group has no significant concentration of credit risk as exposure 1s spread over
a large number of counter parties in the case of trade debts. To manage exposure to credit risk. the group
applies credit limits to its customers and obtains advances from certain customers,

34.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure

to creditrisk at the balance sheet date was:

Long term loans

Investment in associates

[.ong term deposits

Loans and advances

Placements

Trade debts

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Interest recelvable

Deposits and other receivables

Bank balances

The trade debts as at the balance sheet date are as follpws:

Foreign
Domestic

The aging of trade recetvables at the reporting date is

Past due O - 30 days
Past due 31 - 60 days
Past due 61 - 90 days
Past due 91 - 120 days
IPast due 120 days

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees

349,429,002 550,700,000
856,991,798 534.831.039
12,709,852 14,802,512
3,415,382 968,230,098
1,L503,852,766 1.997.425 000
3,705,798,389 2.599.551.840
910,694,818 1.435.122.313
16,528,574 18,393.81Y
41,070,438 O1.832.746
239,708,919 992 797805

7,687,199,938 8,983,686,972

176,845,459 351 689.917
3,528,952,930 2.267.861.925
3,705,798,38% 2.599.551,840

2,104,428,014 1.096,419,086
67,084,686 46,210,280
298,282.954 98(.846.297
372,500,382 |15,260412
862,902,354 560.815.765

3,705,798,390 2,599.551.840

Based on past experience the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
trade receivables past due as majority of receivabies have been recovered subsequent to the vear end and
for other receivables there are reasonable grounds to believe that the amounts will be recovered in short

course of time.
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Rank Balances as at balance sheet date are classified as follows:

Forelgn

Domestic

34.2 Liguidity rnsk

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
2,119,750 1.78Y9.844

237,589,168 991.007.9¢61
239,708,918 992,797,805

|iquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
eroup's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due. The group is not materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially all
obligations / commitments of the group are short term in nature and are restricted to the extent of available
liquidity. In addition, the group has obtained running finance facilities from various banks to meet any
deficit. ifrequired to meet the shorttenn liquidily commitments.

The following, are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 30 June 2009 :

Carrying 6 months 6-12 months  1-2 years More than
Amount or less Z yedrs
(Rupees)
[iubilitics apainst assets subject 39,138,950 $9.359.422 Q773,221 18.076.341 1.U49 967
to timance lease
Lang term linance 47.000.000 - 40000000 7.000.G00) -
Running finance under markup
Arrangements-securcd 3271.211,237 150,274,714 3.140.936.523 - .
Trade and other pavables 943,643,480 804190 821 121.011.099 |8.441.361 -
NMark up acerued 169,619.425 2,735,132 166,864,293 . -
Liabilities agaimst REPO 681,400,430 137,511,462 543 888.968 . -
5.152.033,522 1.084.091,551 4.022.474,104 43.517.902 1.949.967
The tollowing are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 30 June 2008
Carrying 6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years More than
Amount or less 2 years
{Rupees)
| jabilities against assets subject 55.144.676 8.774.638 9,457 4M) 19,409,198  17.5303.330
to finance leasc
Long lerm Jinance . - - ) -
Running finance under markup 3.971.364.774 1 4.600.00() 3.957.364 774 - -
Arcangements-secured
Trude und other pavables 1. 104,300,523 232,403,707 RB67.896.816 . -
Nark up acerued 02,511,811 81,048 92,430,713 - -
Liubulirics against REPO) 508,425,000 - 508.4235,000 - -
5.727.746.784 255.259.4453 5,4335.574,793 12409, 198 17503350
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34.3 Market risk

Marketrisk is the risk that changes in market price, such as fore ign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will effect the group's income or the value ofits holdings of financial instruments.

34.3.1 Currency risk

Forewgn currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into
foreign currency. The group is exposed to foreign currency's risk on conversion of balance in foreighn
currency account matntained in Lanka Rupees (LKR) and US Dollars. The group's exposure to foreign
currency risk for LKR and US Dollars is as follows: '

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Foretgn debtors 176,845,459 33| 689917
Foreign currency bank accounts 2,119,750 1,789,844
Net exposure 178,965,209 333479761
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date rate

2009 2008 2009 2008

[.LKR to PKR 0.66 0.58 0.70 .63
LIS$ to PKR 74.55 64.23 81.1 68

Sensitivity analysis:

Al reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the foreign currencies with ail other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below,
mamnly as aresult of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign currency account balance.

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Effect on prefit and loss
l.ankan Rupee 90,144 170,681
US Daollars 911,890 756,398
1,102,034 927079

T'he weakening of the PKR against foreign currencies would have had an equal but opposite impact on the
post tax |loss.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on {loss)/ profit for the year and
assets / liabilities ofthe group.

— — e 1 (16—
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34.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in markel
Interest rates. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the group's significant interest bearing

financial instruments was as follows:

Fimancial liabilities
Variable rate instruments:

f.iabilities against assets subject
Lo finance lease

Short term borrowings

Liabilities apainst REPO

2009 2008 2009 2008
Effective rate Carrying amount
{in Percentage) (Rupees)
19.39 t0 23.3 9.02t0 16.0 39,158,950 55,144 677
1574 to 18.5 85810 12.57 3,271,211,237 3.971.364.774
17.25 to 18.0 10.1 818,911,892  508.425.000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The group decs not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and
toss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis Sfor varigble rate instruments

Achange ot 1% in intercst rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss for the year by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency
rates. remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008,

increase Decrease
Rupees
As at 30 June 20090 (40,387,706) 41L,387,706

As at 30 June 2008 (45,349.345) 45349345

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on loss for the year and assets /
habihties of the group.

34.3.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices {other than those arismg from interest rate risk or currency risk ). The
group is not exposed to any price risk as there are no financial instruments at the reporting date that are
sensitive to price fluctuations.

_—_—_——_.____' o — = = —————— = 107 ee——
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34 3.4 Fair value of financial instruments

34.4

(1)

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilitics approximate their fair values, Fair value
is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Capital management

The Board’s palicy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors momitors the
return on capital employed, which the group defines as operating income divided by total capital employed.
The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends (e ordinary shareholders.

The group's objectives when managing capital are:

to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, 50 that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The group manages the capital structure in the context of econemic conditions and the risk charactenistics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio - calculated as a ratio of total debt to
equity.

The debi-to-equity ratios as at 30 June 2009 and at 30 June 2008 were as follows:

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees
Total debt 4.038,770,617 4.534.934 450
Total equity and debt B,083,029,454 9,452 449,567
Debt-to-equity rafio 49 97% 47 B8%%

The increase in the debt-to-equity ratio in 2009 resulted primarily from additional borrowings made during
the year o finance the expansion project and meet additional working capital requirements.

Neither there were any changes in the group’s approach to capital management during the year nor the
group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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315 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

I'he aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration. including certain benefits. to the Chicl Executive.

Directors and Excceutives of the Group is as follows:

(hief Executive Director Executives
2009 2008 2009 (08 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees Hupees Rupecs Rupees Rupees
Sanaperial remuneration - - 7,463,333  28.033.858 36,490,052 53.436¥13
Medical - - 429,725 1.816,751 1,516,387  1.245.430
Lidlines - 1.113.564 1,821,829 |,258.400 1,643,702  2.167.880
L lause reut - - 2,145,334 4361600  B,671L520  KOT].510
Provision for gratuty . - 343,231 214,433 2,694,797  2.0691.797
{3hiers - - 821,693 F71.005 607,200 Hi17. 20
— 1,115564_ 13,025,145 35856067 51,623,658 68,823,640
Numnber of persons 1 | 6 8 31 a8

—_————

'he Group bas alsu provided few executives with company maintained cars. No fees were paid Lo any director for attending

Bourd and Audit Commitice meelings.

36 Events aflter the balance sheet date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 09 October 2009 has recommended benus shares at the rafe

ot 15 shares for each 100 shares held i.e. 15% (2008: 40%) as a final dividend.

37 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 09 October 2009 by the Beard of Directors,

3N Genvral

FFigures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

L.ahore: Chairman & Chiefl Executive Officer
% October 2009

——_—.—_______

Dircector
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[Thie Company Secretary
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited Foilo No./CDC A/e.No.
103-C/11. Gulberg-111
l.ahore Shares Held:
I/ We - of
(Neuney (Address)

bemg  the  member(s) of First Capital Securities Corporation Limited hereby appoint Mr./ Mrs.:

Miss , of o
(Nume) (Address)
ot tatling him / her/ Mr. / Mrs. / Miss. of
(Name) (A ddress)
[who 15 alse member of the Company vide Registered Folio No. /CDC A/c. No. {being the

member of the Company)] as my / our proxy to attend at and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at an
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Registered Office of the Companv.
|03-C/[}. Gulberg-111, Lahore, on3! October 2009 at2:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Signature this Day of 2009,

(Witnesses)
Attix Revenue Stamp
| of Rupees Five

| .

Signature
(signature appended should agree with the
specimen signature registered with the
(ompany)

Notes:

|, This Proxy Form, duly complcted and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company
not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

No person shall act as proxy unless he himselt s a member of the Company, except that a corporation
may appolint a person who is nota member.

Frd

CDC account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. | dated 26
Jlanuary 2000 1ssued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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